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Revenue

Profit/(Loss) attributable

to owners of the Company

Dividends

Earnings/(Loss) per share
(HK$) (note a)

Dividends per share
(HK$) (note a)

Dividend cover (time)

Assets and liabilities
Fixed assets (note b)
Interest in joint ventures
Other non-current assets
Mortgage loans*
Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets per share (HK$)

ZE-ZF —“IZTNFE —TTN\E —TTLEFE —TIRE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
THET TExT TET ThET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
38,790 46,949 67,273 94,138 29,889
232,722 (448,392) 362,084 473,758 120,968
10,220 - 23,748 53,304 18,334
0.78 (1.67) 1.54 3.04 1.51

0.03 NATEHR 0.10 0.32 0.23

26 N/ATER 15.4 9.5 6.6
3,642,711 3,392,703 3,885,878 3,310,285 2,712,347
- - - - 1

2,402 950 950 950 950

108 126 305 501 577
1,185,375 508,191 973,114 589,805 392,262
(1,584,859) (1,008,766) (1,428,801) (1,094,591) (1,457,247)
3,245,737 2,893,204 3,431,446 2,806,950 1,648,890
9.36 10.66 12.99 12.89 21.49

non current portion only
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Except for 2010 and 2009, the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for all years as at the respective
year end dates presented have been adjusted to reflect the
bonus element of the rights issue and placements during the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 and as if these events had

taken place at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant

and equipment.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting

will be held at 35/F.,
Road, Wanchai,

Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy
Hong Kong on Thursday, the 1 day of

December 2010 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

—_

To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and

the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June, 2010;

To declare final dividend;

To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration; and

As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:—

A. That:

(i)

(ii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAAE
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share

capital of the Company which the Company
is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (i) above shall not
exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and
(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution

by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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B.

That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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BEREBEFXEH

of Annual General Meeting

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

C. That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 57B of the Companies Ordinance,
the exercise by the Directors of the Company
during the Relevant Period of all the powers
of the Company to allot additional shares
and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of
such power be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the

Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
shall

not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the

subscription rights under any warrants,

aggregate amount of the issued share capital of
the Company; and

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 3R
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(iv) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the

passing of this Resolution until whichever is

the earliest of:

(@)

the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to

conditions;

the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;

and

revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

in general meeting.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares
on the register on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restrictions or obligations
under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange

in any territory outside Hong Kong).

By Order of the Board
Connie S. F. Ho

Company Secretary
Hong Kong, 12 October 2010

Registered Office:
30/F-35/F

Cheuk Nang Plaza
250 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Notes:

1.

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5A of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5B and 5C of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAAE
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| present herewith to shareholders the report of Cheuk
Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with its

subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

The consolidated profit after income tax of our Group for
the year ended 30 June 2010 is HK$259,041,000 (2009: loss
of HK$504,642,000). Details are set out in the consolidated

income statement.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK4 cents (2009: Nil cent) per share payable to
those shareholders whose names appeared in the register of
members as at the close of business on 1 December 2010,
which together with the interim dividend of HK3 cents
(2009: Nil cent) per share, makes a total distribution of HK7
cents (2009: Nil cent) per share this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 30 December
2010.

The Company proposes that a scrip dividend election will
be offered to shareholders with Hong Kong addresses.
Details of the scrip dividend scheme will be announced

later.

(i) A bonus warrants of 22,712,263 units at an initial
share subscription price at HK$1.70 per share were
issued on 20 May 2010 (“2011 May Warrants”).
The 2011 May Warrants are exercisable at any time
between 20 May 2010 and until 4:00 p.m. on 20 May
2011. The warrants are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange with stock code no. 942 and the dealing was

commenced on 25 May 2010.
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(i) (Continued)
Until now, there are a total of 152,341 units of 2011
May Warrants are being exercised, being approximately
0.67%
HK$258,979 being credited to the accounts.

of the total issued warrants and a sum of

(i) The subscription price of the bonus warrants (stock
code: 714) with expiry date on 23 November 2010
was adjusted from HK$1.60 to HK$1.56 per share
following the issue of bonus warrants on 20 May 2010.
Until 11 October 2010, there are a total of 26,061,016
units of warrants being exercised, being approximately
83.99% of the total issued warrants and a sum of
HK$41,641,561 being credited to the accounts. The
last trading day of the warrants is 18 November 2010
and the last day for exercising the subscription rights

attached to the warrants is 23 November 2010.

On 11 October 2010,
warrants (Stock 714 and 942) on the market are HK$1.23

the trading prices of the bonus

and HK$1.13 respectively. Shareholders are well benefited

from the issuance of warrants.

The directors proposed to issue a new bonus warrants to
shareholders in the proportion of every twenty existing
shares held be allotted one bonus warrant. Holder of one
bonus warrant is entitled to exercise the warrant within
12 months after issuance for subscription of one share at
an initial subscription price of HK$1.80 per share. Subject
to the shareholders’ and stock exchange approval, the
proposed bonus warrants will be issued on 13 December

2010.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Ghairman’s Statement

Hong Kong Property

The residential market in Hong Kong further strengthened
both in price and volume in the second quarter of 2010.
Market sentiment has not been dampened despite of the
government’s announcement of measures to monitor the
housing market. The outlook for the Hong Kong luxury
residential sector remains optimistic following enthusiastic
bidding at a number of recent land auctions for luxury

residential sites.

The continue appreciation of Renminbi in addition to the
loosen Monetary Policy cause the historical low bank
interest rate. The housing loan mortgage will remain
affordable which in term attract more local and mainland

investors to property market.

The rental market continued to perform well in the second
quarter owing to the buoyant domestic consumption and
quick recovery of economy. Prime rental is expected to

grow on renewal.
The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:—

1. One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

As soon as the site formation work and foundation of
Phase Il (5 garden villas) completed, the application for
pre-sale consent for the whole project (Phases | and 1)
will be applied in due course. The site formation work
of Phase Il has commenced and it is anticipated that
the work will be completed by end of 2010 and the
foundation and superstructure work will be followed

thereafter.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 3R
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Hong Kong Property (Continued)

2.

6.

Villa Cecil Phase Il, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

All the units are rented out except one which is
under decoration for the show apartment. The rental
for the new and renewed tenancies signed this year
was increased. All three blocks at Phase Il are under

renovation so to upgrade the quality.

Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

All the units except one of Block 1 are all rented out.
The superstructure work of Block Il is expected to be
completed in December 2010 and the Occupation
Permit will be applied in the first quarter of 2011

resulting more rental income.

Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy Road

The occupancy of the building is maintained at 80%.
Renovation of the building will be carried out in stages

in order to improve the quality of the building.

Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

House B is under leased. The renovation of House C
is completed. We have appointed an exclusive agent
Savills (Hong Kong) Limited to market the property by

Private Tender.

New Villa Cecil, Lot No. 1848, Shui Hang, Cheung
Chau

The construction of superstructure work of Phase |
which includes 19 blocks of villas is in progress. It is
anticipated that the work for Phase | will be finished
in one year. The construction work of Phase Il will be

commenced thereafter.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Ghairman’s Statement

China Property

Apart from the American economy still crowded with
uncertainties, the Chinese government has been faced the
calamity after the natural disaster. The Central Government
has convened meetings to discuss the economic situation
of the second half of the year and the practicable future
direction, i.e. to continue the existing financial policies
and monetary policy, and at the same time to strengthen
the monitoring of the economy and to control the property
market.

In Shenzhen, new supply in residential properties remained
low and Baoan and Longgang districts took up over 75% of
the new supply. On 17 April 2010, new government policies
were issued to cool down the residential market, aimed at
better control of investment and speculation activities. Signs
of some reasonable adjustment were evident both in price
and volume for the residential sector after the new policies

were implemented.

Cheuk Nang Garden
Longhwa, Longgang, Shenzhen

The completion of the Metro Line 5 and the Longhwa High
Speed Rail Station in 2011 will benefit our investment in

Longhwa.

The litigation with the main contractor Guangdong
Provincial 8th Construction Group Co., Ltd. (BE%& /&
£EARAA]) was awarded in our favour in July 2010.
The Court Order provides that the contract with the main
contractor be rescinded and the main contractor has to
vacate the site. In return, we shall pay the main contractor
a sum of RMB14,688,000 being the net amount of the
work done on site after offset the amount for breach of
contract payable by the main contractor. However, the
Main Contractor has submitted its appeal to the Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court (RIITHKZAEZEE) and
again refused to vacate and handover the site to us. In this
circumstance, we have also submitted our appeal in order to

safeguard our interest. The hearing date is yet to be fixed.
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China Property (Continued)
Cheuk Nang e Riverside
Yue Hang Zu, Hangzhou City

The basic design and planning of the project has been
approved by the government authorities and the relevant
permit was obtained. The detail working drawings are under
preparation and it is expected that tender for construction

will be issued next year.

Macau Property

The property market in Macau has achieved a steady growth
and it is anticipated that this will carry forward to the year
to come. The overall property market sentiment is positive

despite of some control policies from the government.

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

The building plans (ante projecto de obra) submitted has
received the comments from Government authorities. We
have recently conducted meeting with various departments
including the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau, the
Traffic Bureau, the Fire Services Bureau, the Environmental
Protection Bureau and the Macau Electric Company. The
revised building plans are under preparation and will be

submitted as soon as possible.

The original vendor of the land “Wealthy Victor Limited”
has agreed us to set aside HK$50,000,000 to an escrow
account to guarantee the approval of the building plans
within 18 months after our first submission of the plans.
Owing to the delay of the approval of the building plans,
the litigation was initiated by Wealthy Victor in 2007 to
prevent us from forfeiting the escrow amount. Litigation is

now in progress and hearing is scheduled in March, 2011.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Ghairman’s Statement

Malaysia Property

The Malaysian economy registered growth in the second
quarter of 2010. Bank Negara has once again revised the
economic growth forecast upwards. The residential sector
continued to experience a recovery, as evidenced by
study take-up in the recent launches of several luxurious

residential properties in Kuala Lumpur.

Cecil Chao Centre

Lot 690, 849, 851 and 1280, Section 57, Lorong Perak,
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Phase | named “Parkview”

Our serviced apartments recorded 85% occupancy with

steady income.

Phases Il to V named “Central Plaza”

The piling wall which form part of the foundation work and
basement commenced in June 2010. It is anticipated that
the work will finish by early of 2011 and the piling and
foundation work will be followed thereafter.

The market price of our investment in the Hong Kong
stocks as at 30 June 2010 is HK$97,544,000 as compared
to HK$152,167,000 as at 30 June 2010. During the year, a
total of HK$82,648,000 stock was sold.

The Asian economy has shown recovery since the financial
tsunami as international trade became active. The labour
market is also showing signs of improvement. With the
increase of money supply in the market, property and
stock are expected to perform with steady growth in the
foreseeable future in Hong Kong, Mainland, Macau and
Malaysia. Looking forward, as the Hong Kong government
intends to increase the land supply for small to medium-
sized residential flats, the luxury residential market should

continue to outperform the market.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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| appreciate on behalf of the Group for the dedication of our

directors and staff during the year.

As at the date of this statement, the Executive Directors
are Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (Chairman), Mr. Chao
Howard, Mr. Yung Philip and Ms. Ho Sau Fun, Connie; the
Non-Executive Director is Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph; the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are Dr. Sun Ping Hsu,
Samson, Mr. Leung Wing Kong, Joseph and Mr. Lam Ka
Wai, Graham.

By order of the Board
CECIL CHAO

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 October 2010

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA
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CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil — Executive Chairman

Aged 74, is the founder and Executive Chairman of the
Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor of
architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, investment, finance and architectural
design for over forty years. He has also worked for Hong
Kong Government Building Department and Architectural
Office and elected as director of Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers’ Association for consecutive 30 years. He is a
Hong Kong registered architect and a member of the Royal
Institute of British Architect and has obtained Honorary
Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from the U.S. Morrison University.
Dr. Chao is also awarded 2004’s World Outstanding
Chinese and is the Chairman and beneficial owner of Yan
Yin Company Limited and Szehope Securities Company
Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the
Group. Dr. Chao is also director of the subsidiaries of the
Group and an Independent Non-Executive Director of ENM
Holdings Limited, a Mainboard listed company in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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ctors and Senior Management

LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph

Mr. Leung, aged 64, is a Director of Chinachem Group
companies. He has over 40 years of experience in finance
and management in property development. Mr. Leung is
presently the Chairman and the Acting Chief Executive
Officer of ENM Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company, the Chairman of Genovate Biotechnology
Company Limited, a company listed on the Gre Tai
Securities Market in Taiwan, a Supervisor of Yang Ming
Marine Transport Corporation, a company listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, and a supervisor of UnionPay
Merchant Services Company Limited. He is a Vice President
and a member of the executive committee of The Real
Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong and a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administration. Mr.
Leung does not hold other positions in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

LAM Ka Wai, Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 42, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lam is currently the Managing Director and Head of
Corporate Finance of an investment bank and has over 16
years experience in investment banking as well as around
4 years experience in accounting and auditing. He is
also the independent non-executive director of Applied
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519), China
Fortune Group Limited (stock code: 290), China Sonangol
Resources Enterprises Limited (stock code: 1229), Pearl
Oriental Innovation Limited (stock code: 632) and Value
Convergence Holdings Ltd (stock code: 821), companies
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited; and China Railway Logistics Limited (stock
code: 8089) and Finet Group Limited (stock code: 8317),
companies listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, Mr. Lam
was the independent non-executive director of ZZNode
Technologies Company Limited (stock code: 2371), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Ltd, from 29 January 2008 to 5 October 2010.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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SUN Ping Hsu Samson
Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 85, is currently the Chairman

of the Sun International Group of Companies. He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director of
Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman &
Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun has
over 50 years experience in marketing, distribution and
manufacturing of wrist watches, and 20 years in marketing
and distribution of consumer products and electronic goods.
He has been a pioneer in developing trade with China
since 1979, and continued to be active in both trading and

manufacturing in China.

Dr. Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity
in many voluntary community services and charitable
organizations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the

Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Mr. Lee, aged 48, is currently the Director of Universal
Electronics Industries Limited and holds many directorships
in companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He earned his
Bachelor degree in Business Management & Economics
from Sophia University Tokyo in 1984. A manufacturing &
property investment veteran with 23 years of experience,
Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera Corporation
Japan and returned to Hong Kong in late 1987 to head the
photographic manufacturing equipment business through
the period of conventional film technologies to digital
imaging technologies. Mr. Lee possessed a sound knowledge
in industrial know-how in China and sound experience in

developing distribution network internationally.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 3R

21



22

Ik £
HEA CBHEFR2ER  R_ZETRF/NAM
BAEE SEAEGHTEFEEEA
00 28 MERETMHMEZERES ITE
BiE17F  HEEESKE  §E4R
REBGI ARG 2EMEEAD - HEHF
e AEERGE A LIHERE
T2  FELEERRBREANE R FIH
BEFESE—HB -

MFEH
fa]/NeR - IR F435% — A RETAERX
NAIZESE - @’JWHB??’% AWEAEY

MEBRBHWERTRABAEZEE -
—AREQRRWMEIELBE -+ FULE
ZHEER o A/ NMBTEARR R REME AR
BETES B -

i)

A IWF26% BARAITHRERER
TRBEREEEE IR T - BAERS
ZERF-ANBAEE BITHALE -4
BEEBEMMEBLEMMNIASBHESE
BLEN HAELERAAEETE KRN
HEEHEE -

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R

TEEARME A

GIOIS and Senior Management

YUNG, Philip

Mr. Yung, aged 52, has joined our Group since June,
2005. Mr. Yung has more than 20 years experience in the
Accounting industry. He has worked in Listed Property
Developers in Hong Kong for more than 17 years. Mr. Yung
is currently a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow Member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom and holding a Master Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Yung is also a director of the

subsidiaries of the Company.

HO Sau-Fun Connie

Miss Ho, aged 43, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of U.K.
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 22 years. Miss Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries

of the Company.

CHAO, Howard

Mr. Chao, aged 26, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the
Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Chao has joined the Group as
Executive Manager since January, 2006. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts in Management of Business Administration
from California State University, Fullerton of United States
of America. Mr. Chao is currently in charge of the marketing

division of Hong Kong and Macau projects of the Group.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA
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Corporate Information

Executive Directors

CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil
CHAO Howard

YUNG Philip

HO Sau-Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph
LAM Ka Wai Graham
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

LEUNG Wing Kong Joseph
LAM Ka Wai Graham
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

HO Sau Fun Connie

30th — 35th Floor
Cheuk Nang Plaza
250 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£8) ARAA
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Corporate Information

"R Hong Kong

BITIRTT (FE) AR QA Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
ROGIRITHERAA] The Bank of East Asia, Limited

BERITAERRAA Hang Seng Bank Limited

FF R EERTT Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

RBEIBITROD AR AR EEDTT The Bank of Communications, Limited Hong Kong Branch
ERRIT(BE)BRAA] DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

EEIRTT The Hongkong and Shanghai and Banking

Corporation Limited

=3 Overseas
SERTAERAA Hong Leong Bank Berhad
o 3 /) E PR 12 B0 E 75 BT Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
AT ZERETT Ho & Ip Solicitors
BEREPRBFEZLARAA] Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
FBERKXER1835 46th Floor
a6 Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
ERMAERSHMBERRF The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2010 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$38,790,000 (Year ended 30 June 2009:
HK$46,949,000), a 17.4% decrease over the same period
last year. It was mainly due to the decrease in turnover of
rental income from investment properties in Hong Kong.

For property leasing, the Year recorded a decrease of 16.4%
in rental income as compared with the corresponding
year in 2009, amounting HK$36,524,000 (2009:
HK$43,683,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$24,430,000, a
29.7% decrease as compared with the same period last
year.

Other income recorded an increase of 309.8% to
HK$101,438,000 when compared with the same period
last year. The other income was mainly attributed to
the written back of provision for late payment charges
of HK$41,422,000 and the impairment loss on other
receivables of HK$31,624,000 relating to the land
acquisition in Hangzhou. The remaining other income
were attributed to exchange gain from overseas investment,
gain on disposal of listed securities and dividend income
from listed securities. Gain on fair value adjustment on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted
to HK$2,371,000 (2009: loss of HK$31,565,000). Fair
value adjustment on investment properties changed from
loss to gain for the Year amounted to HK$199,952,000
(2009: loss of HK$479,043,000). Administrative expenses
increased by 25.7% to HK$29,026,000 as compared with
the same period last year. Other operating expenses of
HK$304,000 recorded for the Year (2009: HK$73,183,000
mainly represent the provision for late payment charges
of HK$41,422,000 and the impairment loss on other
receivable of HK$31,761,000. Both of which were related
to the land acquisition in Hangzhou which was written
back this year). Finance costs recorded a decrease of 11.6%
to HK$13,922,000 as compared with the same period last

year.
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Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the Year was HK$232,722,000 as compared to a loss
of HK$448,392,000 for the same period last year.
earnings per share was HK$0.78 (2009: basic loss per share
HK$1.67) and fully diluted earnings per share was HK$0.73
(2009: no diluted loss per share).

Basic

No final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008:
HK3 cents) and an interim dividend of HK3 cents per share
for the half year ended 31 December 2009 (half year ended
31 December 2008: Nil). Total dividend of HK3 cents per
share were paid during the Year. Scrip dividend alternative
was offered to shareholders in respect of 31 December 2009
interim dividend. Bonus warrants on the basis of one 2010
warrants for every ten issued shares held for the year ended
30 June 2009 and one 2011 Warrants for every fifteen
issued shares held for the half year ended 31 December

2009 were issued during the Year.

Final dividend of HK4 cents and interim dividend of HK3
cents for the Year (2009: no final and interim dividend). The
Board has proposed a bonus issue of warrants on the basis

of one warrants for every twenty issued share held.
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As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s total equity attributable
to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$3,207,484,000 (30 June 2009: HK$2,881,270,000),
an increase of HK$326,214,000 or 11.3% when compared
with 30 June 2009. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 346,667,517 as at 30 June 2010 (2009:
271,510,696 shares), the total equity attributable to owners
of the Company per share was HK$9.25, a decrease of
12.8% over 30 June 2009: HK$10.61.

equity attributable to owners of the Company per share was

The decrease in total

mainly attributable to the increase in number of ordinary
share but partly offset by increase in fair value of investment
properties and listed securities investment of the Group

during the Year.

Included in the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company is deferred tax liabilities of HK$399,744,000 on
fair value gains on investment properties and property, plant
and equipment. If the deferred tax liabilities are excluded,
the total equity attributable to owners of the Company will
become HK$3,607,228,000 or HK$10.41 per share.

During the Year,
China,
Other than the existing projects and those

the Group had acquired of lands in
Hangzhou, bought and sold listed securities
investment.
disclosed in the annual report, the Group did not have any
confirmed future plans for material investment or acquiring

capital assets.
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As at 30 June 2010, the listed securities investment was
HK$97,544,000. During the Year, the portfolio was
decreased by a net disposal of HK$56,994,000 and
gain in fair value of HK$2,371,000. The listed securities
investments of HK$97,544,000 as at 30 June 2010
representing 1.9% (30 June 2009: 3.2%) of the total assets,
which formed part of the Group’s cash management

activities.

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
and control the various types of risk it faces. This is
supplemented by active management involvement and

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2010
and 30 June 2009 were 346,667,517 and 271,510,696

respectively.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$1,376,791,000 (30 June 2009:
HK$1,189,477,000). Cash and bank balances amounted to
HK$101,251,000 (30 June 2009: HK$35,922,000) and net
borrowing amounted to HK$1,275,540,000 (30 June 2009:
HK$1,153,555,000).

Total debts to equity ratio was 42.4% (30 June 2009: 41.1%)
and net debt to equity ratio was 39.3% (30 June 2009:
39.9%).
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The increase in the total debt to equity ratio and the
decrease in net debt to equity ratio were mainly due to
increase in bank borrowing during the Year resulted from

acquisition of land in Hangzhou.

At the reporting date, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Of the Group’s total bank and other borrowings
HK$1,376,791,000, 12.5%, 6.9% and 80.6%

repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years

were

respectively. The Group’s bank and other borrowings
carried interest rates by reference to HIBOR. No hedging for

interest rate subsisted at the end of the Year.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s investment properties,
properties for sales, property, plant and equipment
and listed securities investment with their respective
carrying value of HK$2,556,997,000 (30 June 2009:
HK$2,449,464,000), HK$378,745,000 (30 June 2009:
HK$355,826,000), HK$80,000,000 (30 June 2009:
HK$78,000,000) and HK$68,864,000 (2009: HK$ Nil) were

pledged to secure general banking facilities of the Group.

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest capitalized for the Year was
HK$6,742,000 as compared to HK$15,384,000 for the
last year. Interest expenses for the Year amounted to
HK$13,922,000, representing 11.6% decrease over the
interest expenses of HK$15,752,000 recorded for the same
period last year. The decrease in interest expense was
mainly due to decrease in interest rate during the Year. The
average interest rate over the year under review was 1.1%
(2009: 1.3%) which was expressed as a percentage of total

interest expenses over the average total borrowing.
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During the year under review, the Group employed a total
of 43 (Year ended 30 June 2009: 45) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option

scheme was adopted for the Year.

During the year 2010 the properties market, especially
the deluxe residential market has significant growth
which is our core business. The construction of One
Kowloon Peak Phase Il has commenced. The marketing
of the whole project will be started after Pre-sale Consent
obtained. The development of Block 2 Villa Cecil Phase
1l has commenced and to be completed in early 2011.
Superstructure of “New Villa Cecil” at Cheung Chau

commenced in June 2010.

The development project at Estrada de Seac Pai Van,
Coloane was at the building plan approval stage at the

reporting date.
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The Group’s development project “Cheuk Nang Garden” in
Longhwa Shenzhen was delayed by the main contractor. In
July 2010, the Shenzhen Baoan People’s Court has made
a judgement on the claim against the main contractor on
damages and termination of the contract. However both

parties appeal for the judgement as at the reporting date.

The acquisition of land in Hangzhou was completed in
December 2009. The development project “Cheuk Nang e

Riverside” was at the stage of development plan approval.

Development Order for Phase Il named “Central Plaza”
has been approved by the local authority and the Building
Plan (structural and detail) of 2 blocks of buildings are also
approved. Foundation work has commenced at the reporting
date.
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A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs.
K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited, Roma Appraisals Limited
and Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. in respect of the
Group’s investment properties and certain property, plant
and equipment as at 30 June 2010 and that valuation
was used in preparing 2010 financial statements. The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$1,749,100,000
and HK$1,809,120,000 respectively making the total
HK$3,558,220,000 (2009: investment properties and
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$1,665,400,000 and HK$1,643,809,000 making the
total HK$3,309,209,000). The aggregate increase in fair
value of approximately HK$199,952,000 was credited to
the income statement for the Year. The Group’s land and
building held for own use carried at fair value were valued
at HK$80,000,000 (2009: HK$78,000,000). The aggregate
increase in fair value of approximately HK$3,625,000
was credited to the reserve for the Year. Properties under
development for sale of the Group were stated at lower of

cost or net realisable value in the financial statements.

To diversified its investment risk, the Group will continue its
policy by diversifying its investment in China, Hong Kong,

Macau and Malaysia.

Following the recovery of the global economic, the Group is

expecting a good future prospect in long run.
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Gorporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the
performance of the Group. During the year under review,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 30 June 2010 except

the following deviations:—

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the Code.

2. Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.
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The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions,
oversees the operations and monitors the financial
performance of the Group. The management manages the
business of the Group within the delegated power and

authority by the Board.

The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil (the
“Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Directors and Four
Executive Directors. The names, biographical details of the
directors are set out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 22 to the annual report. All
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there is an
independent element on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgment, and that non-executive
directors should be of sufficient caliber and number for their

views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Gorporate Governance Report

The Board has appointed two Board Committees, namely
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee. The

composition of the Board and the Board Committees are set

out below and their respective responsibilities are discussed

in this report.

The types of decisions which are reserved to be taken by the

Board include:—
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matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial

shareholder or a director of the Company;

formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy
or entering into contract involving significant capital
acquisition or expenditure;

financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial

statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under the

Listing Rules or other statutory requirements;

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of

new securities;
major appointments or removal to the Board, the Chief

Executive Officer, the Company’s chief financial officer,

company secretary and external auditors;

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 3R
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changes to the terms of reference or membership of any
committee of the Board and the authority delegated to

the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes of
the Corporate Governance Practical Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.

FRBESLET200 €3 (AP BFE3X During the year, 20 board meetings were held (inclusive of
TREEESE)  SEEMLFEFHBW T 0 3 full board meetings) and the individual attendance of each

director is set out below:—

HEEEESB R

Number of Board =
BEEfE Name of Director Meetings attended Attendance rate
i ZE L Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 20 100
HOE Chao Howard 16 80
5 IR £ Yung Philip 20 100
fa] 5 25 Ho Sau Fun Connie 20 100
FREE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 3 100*
BHRieiE L Sun Ping Hsu Samson 3 100*
2T Leung Wing Kong Joseph 3 100*
e Lam Ka Wai Graham 3 100*
* HEFERFEALNESREFESHE * The attendance rate is calculated based their

attendance at full board meetings
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which
give a true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance
with the relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards in force, and are published in a timely
manner. The directors of the Company are also responsible
for selecting and applying on a consistent basis suitable
accounting policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and report that the Company has announced its
annual and interim results in a timely manner after the end

of the relevant period, as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other save
that Mr. Howard Chao is the son of the Chairman. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which
a director has a conflict of interest, he declares his interest

and is required to abstain from voting.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills,
knowledge and expertise that each director brings to bear in
its deliberations, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to
protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders.
The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills and
experience to continue to effectively oversee the business of

the Company.

ANNUAL RePORT 2010 FE$R
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The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
understood that the two positions cannot be performed by
the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division
of responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of

power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadship of the Board,
for ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and
for ensuring communication of the views of the Board
to the public. In performing this role, the Chairman’s
responsibilities include chairing meetings of the Board;
ensuring the board meetings receive accurate, complete,
timely and clear information concerning affairs of the
Company; ensuring constructive relations between
executive and non-executive directors; formulating for
discussion and decision, questions which have been moved
for the consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
acting as liaison between the Board and management;
in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed
by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at
least annually hold meetings with non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) without the

presence of the executive directors.

The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies adopted
by the Board and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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The Company currently cannot comply with the requirement
of the Listing Rules to separate the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. We are, through different channels,
still looking for a suitable person to act as Chief Executive
Officer and with a hope to comply with the requirement in

the next financial year.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and should be subject to re-election. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least once every three years in accordance
with the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Three out of the four non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$20,000 per year and the remaining has
remunerated at HK$48,000 per year.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Wing
Kong Joseph and the members are Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson
and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham, all of them are Independent

Non-Executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is primary responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on
the Group’s policy and structuring the remuneration of the
directors of the Company and the senior management of
the Group. No directors or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration
package of the directors includes salary, bonus and pension.
The remuneration level is determined by reference to the
expertise, performance and experience possessed by each

director.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year or as requested by the director responsible for

resources function.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
and approved the remuneration of the directors and the
Senior Management. The Remuneration Committee also
approved the renewal of the tenancy agreement in relation
to the provision of housing accommodation to Dr. Cecil
CHAO Sze Tsung.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr.
Leung Wing Kong Joseph and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham
and Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The composition and members of the Audit
Committee complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21

to the Listing Rules.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board to oversee the financial report system, risk
management and internal control procedures and the
external audit functions. The Audit Committee annually
assesses the appointment of the external auditor, taking into
account the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditors service provided, the audit firm’s quality control
procedures, relationships between the external auditors and

the Company and the independence of the external auditors.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held.

The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

HESBXE
Number of HER
REEB Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
HRIB Sun Ping Hsu Samson 100
BT Leung Wing Kong Joseph 100
MR L Lam Ka Wai Graham 100

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 %R
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company and
discussed with management the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity of the
financial statements of the Company, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the interim report for the period ended 31
December 2009, the audited financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2010 before their submission to the
Board.

The Company has not set up a Nomination Committee yet.
According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The current
nomination procedures for appointment of new directors
would normally take into consideration of the candidate’s
past experience, qualifications and any other factors,
if any, which are relevant to the Company’s business.
Then, short listed candidates with their biographies for
directorship would be brought to the Board before meeting

for consideration as soon as it is practicable.

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company Messrs. Grant Thornton were
approximately HK$450,000 and HK$63,000 for statutory
audit services rendered and non-audit services rendered

(including disbursement fees) to the Group respectively.

The Group also appointed other external auditors for the
statutory audit purposes of certain overseas subsidiaries
and their remuneration for audit services rendered was

approximately HK$51,000.
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The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group.
For the year under review, the Board considered that the
Company’s internal control system is adequate and effective
and the Company has complied with the code provisions on

the internal controls of the Code.

The Board recognizes that constant changes taking place in
the business environment which require periodic reviews
of the system of internal controls. Well-managed internal
controls enable effective and efficient operations, ensure the
reliability of internal and external reporting and assist in the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board
will consistently review the system of internal controls to

ensure its effectiveness.
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The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
ensure that they are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
directors also ensure the timely publication of such financial

statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Report of the Auditors

on pages 54 to 56.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by directors of the Company. A
copy of the Model Code has been sent to each Director of
the Company. Also, formal written notices are sent to the
Directors one month before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s half-year result and two months’
notice prior to the annual result, as a reminder that the
directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the

Company until after such results have been published.
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Under the Model Code, directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated

written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2010 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on page
50 to 51.

The Company continues to enhance relationship and
communication with its investors. Detailed information
about the Company’s performance and activities is
provided in the annual report and the interim report which
are sent to shareholders. The Company maintains close
communications with investors analysts, fund managers
and the media by individual interviews and meetings. The
Group also responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely manner.
The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’” meetings to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board or senior management directly.

In order to promote effective communication, the
Company’s website www.cheuknang.com.hk was
established which provides the most up-to-date information

relating to the Company and its business for the investors.
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The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity
to communicate with all shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meetings for
which a notice would be served with at least 21 days
period. The Chairman and/or directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meetings.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantially separate issue such as the election of

individual directors and re-appointment of auditors.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in a circular to
shareholders accompanied the annual report. The circular
also includes relevant details on proposed resolutions, and

biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R

45



46

EFEREE

Report of the Directors

EEEAEEE_T—ZETFA=1THI
FEZHREENEEXFREXESHRES

RRAFEIEBEBRREZER - KB A7
EEXBHBHNM B HRKRMEEFE2018A -

AREBAFERBERBMEEHMER 2 KRHE
GRIE YNGR e R

AEBRE_ZT—F

TFNHA=
ZEBEFHVNESTHZIFEARERA -

FHEARR B FAR3BN (Z B A E : 0J81L) -
E28010,220,0008 TER _E—ZFF XA
PO H R 2 o

EFelEZRRERBREFR4EN (=
ZENF 08I TR _FE—FF+-A
—HERREZMABERL ZRR  ERDIK
B2 HHRBERIBI(ZETNASF 08
i) » "EEEHIRFEREGR7EI(ZF
TAEF : 0Bl -

FRERNBFERG EHER - REKREH
R-_TE—ZTF+_A=+HIK% -

AEEROAF2EE EELAEHME
FHOIRE2EA -

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 %R

The directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010.

The Company operates as an investment holding company.
Principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 20

to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to

the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
57.

An interim dividend of HK3 cents (2009: Nil cent) per share,
totaling HK$10,220,000 was paid on 4 June 2010.

The directors resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK4 cents (2009: Nil cent) per share payable to
those shareholders whose names appeared in the register of
members as at the close of business on 1T December 2010,
which together with the interim dividend of HK3 cents
(2009: Nil cent) per share, makes a total distribution of HK7
cents (2009: Nil cent) per share this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General

Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 30 December
2010.

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.
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AR 2 B IS SN B SRR M35 2978 »  Details of the movements in share capital are set out in note

29 to the financial statements.

KRB RAREBRAFERNZ FEZE)F Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
B B 5 A FE R M T 5308 & FE67E  during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
EFBAZIEARAEHRNA - statements and the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 67 to 68 respectively.

KIEEB QTGN E79BIE 2 T 5T E - Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June 2010,
ARREBEZE_ZT—ZFTFNA=Z+HHAH calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
KB 2175,347,0008 7T (—ZEZ L4 Ordinance, amounted to HK$175,347,000 (2009:
145,853,000/ 7T) ° HK$145,853,000).

REBARNFRNZIEEWEMNPDE  #22 Details of the movements in investment properties and
LEREZEBNFED BTSN P EFTHREM  property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
15 KREI6IAN © notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements respectively.

NEBMPAYEEZR ZFIBETIENFE188EZE  Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on
F192E A ° pages 188 to 192.
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The amounts of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings

of the Group at 30 June 2010 were as follows:

Bank loans

Advances from a director

Repayment analysis:

Bank loans
— within one year

— in the second year

— in the third to fifth years inclusive

Advances from a director

- no fixed repayment terms

£H
Group
THET
HK$’ 000

1,332,937
43,854

1,376,791

171,841
51,000
1,110,096

1,332,937

43,854

1,376,791
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The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 42%
(2009: 41%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and
other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of
bank loans and overdrafts and advances from a director over
the Group’s financial debts is 97% (2009: 94%) and 3%
(2009: 6%) respectively.

Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Ringgit
Malaysia, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2010.

The directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Mr. Chao Howard
Mr. Yung Philip

Ms. Ho Sau-Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Wing Kong Joseph
Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham and Mr.
Yung Philip will retire at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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At 30 June 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),

#FHLHEED as recorded in the register maintained by the Company

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

[N
Equity

TR FRR0.1E T
Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.1 each

—T——EHARRES
2011 May Warrants

EBARFR0.1ETT
Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.1 each

—E-TF+—ARKRES
2010 November Warrants

:?7735_:5)? HL\HXF.—WX(
2011 May Warrants

1B A 5

Personal interest

16,270,851

16,270,851

1,063,4541
1,063,454 units

1,694,597

1,694,597

141,848
141,848 units

110,75719
110,757 units

& B R

Corporate interests

218,639,326

218,639,326

14,290,37017
14,290,370 units

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA



Mret - BESE IR ERAWEZ DAE#EE]
BIARRRZ EEBRRMABR R F R

BABRIFPAFE 2D -

ARFEEBRTFTARAEE RSHITHA
B EBBEASZEMNARBARIFKN 2
TR -

T-TEXNA=Z+TAH KLl K
HE 8 AZIWEEA AR SCHEH
Al 2 B B i X B FAR IR FE 5 K B
ESXE

A

=+

Do |
J%H
;1

%

<

%352{%58@52)5: Bz Em
AR5 FRIFBAMAR A KB

P o M TR

hs
R\ EI

MRAFERN - AT - MBAR - AEHRN
JB ~ A sk E B A I 48 2 B A ] 15 7 E AN
REEFABEARASEMA R Z KM
HEFILHREFFEIH s -

RZE—FFA=Z+H BTHELBEK
BlZE336IEFF M BEM 228k - BRI L
WHEIZEENGRSITRABEZEI - R

RATLFREEFEMALBERATDE
GRABED ZHKI L2 = Bl -

RAFERARRR T EELOTAAQGZ
[ NRABSEN B AR TN ER Ak
EARRNEZ D

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g

(%E) ARRA

EFEREE

Report of the Directors

Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above

represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited

and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.

The Company did not grant to the directors, chief executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2010 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

At 30 June 2010,
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that

the register of interests in shares

the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.
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There are no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 83.6% and 33.1%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 18.5% and 7.5%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Among the Group’s five largest suppliers, Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited, of which Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is a
director and beneficial owner, contributed to 27.7% of the

Group’s total purchases.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2010, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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AEERESENSEETEAB 2R @A Brief biographical details in respect of the directors and
BREREI9BEEZE22ER - senior management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to
22.

HE-_ZT—ZTFA=Z1+H8I1L A&EBEHX As at 30 June 2010, the Group employed 43 staff. Staff
BFA4BE T  HFMWM—MIEEF M remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The
AEEBENTNABETREEMETR - EHFBFE Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
FRER N AREKRETEIH - end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

RERRBFARG EHIREEBIEZEZEMAD A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
1T (HZEERT) BARARZEBAZR:#Z% > to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton, Certified Public

Accountants, as auditors of the Company.

AEES G On behalf of the Board
BiTEE Cecil Sze-Tsung Chao

it Executive Chairman

55 —ET—ZFTFE+A+_-H Hong Kong, 12 October 2010
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) set out
on pages 57 to 187, which comprise the consolidated and
company statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2010 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

12 October 2010

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA
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BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income

Changes in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
property, plant and
equipment

Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit/(Loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/
credit

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Profit/(Loss) for the year
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest

Earnings/(Loss) per share
for profit/(loss)
attributableto the
owners of the Company
during the year

Basic

Diluted

K1
Notes

15

16

10

13

—ZF —EENF
2010 2009
FExT TATT
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
38,790 46,949
(14,360) (12,217)
24,430 34,732
101,438 24,751
199,952 (479,043)
- (3,306)
2,371 (31,565)
(29,026) (23,092)
(304) (73,183)
(13,922) (15,752)
284,939 (566,458)
(25,898) 61,816
259,041 (504,642)
232,722 (448,392)
26,319 (56,250)
259,041 (504,642)
HK$0.787% 7T (HK$1.67787T)
HK$0.737% 7t A N/A

FOOEEF187EME ZBRIEM T RAH The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

HwRZED

statements.



BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

REERF(FBE)
Hte2mWs (FE)
BEBINE BRI
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Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Exchange gain/(loss) on
translation of financial
statements of foreign

operations

Surplus on revaluation of

properties held for
own use

Income tax relating to
surplus on revaluation
of properties held for

own use

Other comprehensive
income/(loss) for the

year, net of tax

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest

—2-2% —EENE
2010 2009
FHET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
259,041 (504,642)
19,108 (31,876)
3,625 -
(598) -
22,135 (31,876)
281,176 (536,518)
254,857 (480,268)
26,319 (56,250)
281,176 (536,518)

MisE A7ZBf7 The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

statements.
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and
equipment
Mortgage loans
Other financial assets

Other non-current asset

Current assets

Properties under
development for sale

Completed properties
for sale

Financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Trade and other
receivables

Amount due from
ultimate holding
company

Amounts due from
related companies

Prepaid tax

Bank balances and cash

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAAE

K1 et
Notes

15
16
18

19
21

22

22

23

24

25

25

R-ZF—FFHAZ+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2010

—®-B5  —TTAF
2010 2009
FExT FAE7T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
3,558,220 3,309,209
84,491 83,494
108 126

1,452 -

950 950
3,645,221 3,393,779
1,065,745 798,297
368,772 347,878
97,544 152,167
6,912 15,151
132 132

1,200 900

139 263
101,251 35,922
1,641,695 1,350,710

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-F—F&E~HAZ+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2010
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Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to non-

controlling shareholders

Current portion of
interest-bearing
borrowings

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current

liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Non-current portion of
interest-bearing

borrowings

Advances from a director

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

K1 et
Notes

26

27

23

27
31.1(b)
28

—2-2% —EENE
2010 2009
FExT FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
41,165 62,988
239,990 239,990
171,841 536,000
304 -

3,020 3,541
456,320 842,519
1,185,375 508,191
4,830,596 3,901,970
1,161,096 582,000
43,854 71,477
379,909 355,289
1,584,859 1,008,766
3,245,737 2,893,204

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves

ABAE S

Equity attributable to

owners of the Company

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

i
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
EF

Director

K1 et
Notes

29

R-ZF—FFHAZ+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2010

—E-%F —EENE
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
34,667 27,151
3,172,817 2,854,119
3,207,484 2,881,270
38,253 11,934
3,245,737 2,893,204
F Ik £
Yung Philip
EE
Director

187 B P& 2 BRIEIFE A AKBI 7 The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

statements.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAAE
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R-F—F&E~HAZ+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2010

EERAE
ERBEE

LpENCI A £
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RBEE
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IR
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MEERABAEE

ioaza
Notes
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries 20
Amounts due from
subsidiaries 20(a)
Current assets
Other receivables 24

Amounts due from
subsidiaries 20(b)

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables 26
Amounts due to

subsidiaries 20(b)
Taxation

Net current assets

Total assets less current

liabilities

—z-%% —EENE
2010 2009
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
257,391 257,391
438,133 498,440
695,524 755,831

1 1
1,541,581 1,306,166
128 153
1,541,710 1,306,320
332 424
563,771 386,142
2,548 3,085
566,651 389,651
975,059 916,669
1,670,583 1,672,500
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CHEUK NANG

Non-current liabilities

CIE/ @] Amounts due to subsidiaries

Advances from a director

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

ii= i
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
EF

Director

K1 et
Notes

20(a)
31.1(b)

29
30

MERIE R

Statement of Financial Position

R-ZF—FFHAZ+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2010

—E-ZF —TENF

2010 2009

FExT FAET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

- 85,365

43,854 71,477

43,854 156,842

1,626,729 1,515,658

34,667 27,151

1,592,062 1,488,507

1,626,729 1,515,658
Bk B

Yung Philip
o

Director

187 B P& 2 BRIEHIFE A ARBI 7% The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

statements.
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BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010
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Cash flows from operating

activities

Profit/(Loss) before income

tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Dividend income

Interest income

Finance costs

Change in fair value of
investment properties

Change in fair value of
property, plant and
equipment

Reversal of provision for
bad debts

Gain on sale of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Net unrealised (gain)/loss
on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Net unrealised loss on
financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Reversal of impairment losses
on other receivables

Reversal of provision for late
payment charges

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Provision for late payment
charges

Exchange difference

Operating profit before

working capital changes

Increase in properties for sale

Increase in amounts due
from related companies

Decrease in amount due
from ultimate holding
company

Decrease/(Increase) in trade
and other receivables

Increase/(Decrease) in trade
and other payables

Cash used in operations
Profits tax paid
Finance costs paid

Net cash used in operating

activities

K1t
Notes

—E—ZF —EFNF
2010 2009
FAET FATT

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
284,939 (566,458)
3,441 3,640
(2,823) (4,020)
463) (1,034)
13,922 15,752
(199,952) 479,043
- 3,306

37) (22)
(12,073) (3,450)
2,371) 31,565
304 -
(31,624) —
(41,422) —
- 31,761

- 41,422
(11,462) (10,225)
379 21,280
(244,894) (30,210)
(300) (768)

- 468

8,260 (8,261)
19,599 (37,031)
(216,956) (54,522)
(3,378) (5,830)
(13,922) (15,752)
(234,256) (76,104)
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Gonsolidated Statement of Gash Flows

BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

—E-fF —EEAF
2010 2009
H it FET FET
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Cash flows from investing
activities
Dividend income 2,823 4,020
Interest received 463 1,034
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (823) (340)
Additions of investment
properties (29,198) (31,050)
Proceeds from sale of
financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 82,648 43,337
Purchase of financial assets
at fair value through profit
or loss (13,581) (3,808)
Purchase of other financial
assets (1,452) -
Decrease/(Increase) in
pledged bank balances 14,468 (10,977)
Repayment of mortgage loans 34 195
Net cash from investing
activities 55,382 2,411

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAAE
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BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

MEEBCRERE

BT - EHRRAX

ENMERE
FTIRIRTTE R
RITIEEER

B BEE R R K

(BE) /HEMEERR

BEGETEL "
()2 HEFHE

RERBEEEEYZ
#m, ORd) RE

FHAZBRERRE
LEY

FRZBEESRAS
LEY

BITEFERREEEY
R AT
8RB MRS ok
22 RITETF
MR E

B BEEMRITER

Cash flows from financing
activities

Issue of share capital, net
of expenses

Dividends paid

New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loan

Repayment of advance
from a related company

(Repayment of)/Additions

in advances from a director

Net cash from/(used in)

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at

end of year

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash as

stated in consolidated
statement of financial

position

Less: pledged bank balances

—2-2% —EENE

2010 2009

Jioaz3 T#ET TET
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
81,577 6,200
(10,220) (7,924)

794,033 187,691
(579,096) (183,265)
- (11,000)

(27,623) 680
258,671 (7,618)
79,797 (81,311)

17,651 98,962

97,448 17,651

101,251 35,922
(3,803) (18,271)

97,448 17,651

FOEOEZEF187HMME 2 FRIEM T /AY T The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

WK ZED

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Balance at 1 July 2008

2008 final dividend approved
and paid

Issue of share capital
Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme
By exercise of warrants

Share issue expenses

Transactions with owners

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive loss for
the year
Exchange loss on translation of
financial statements of foreign

operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance at 30 June 2009

AOARE AEHER
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ES Al FER
kx  AERE EEEE EREE REEE REER 4y Bi  AER
Property Special Non-

Share  Exchange ~revaluation capital Share  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium* profits* Total interest equity
TEr TR TR TEx  TER  TERL  TERT  TER  TER

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Hit29) (Hit0)  (Hit30)
(Note 29) (Note 30)  (Note 30)

26,413 5272 - 320065 1,017,127 1,994,385 3,363,262 08,184 3,431,446

- - - - -7 (7.924) - 794

692 - - - 5,192 - 5,884 - 5,884

46 - - - 297 - 343 - 343

- - - - 7) - 7) - 7)

738 - - - 5,462 (7,924) (1,724) - (1,724)

- - - - ©(48392)  (448392)  (56,250)  (504,642)

- (31,876) - - - - (31,876) - (31,876)

- (31,876 - - - (44839) (460268  (56250) (536,518)

27,151 (26,604) - 320,065 1,022,589 1,538,009 2,881,270 11,934 2,893,204

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£8) ARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

“EENFLA-RER

EHERBAN-T-ZF

Balance at 1 July 2009

2010 interim dividend approved

RARE and paid
ki Issue of share capital

REARKE TS Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme

TSAREE By exercise of warrants
RA%TER Share issue expenses
BEEACRS Transactions with owners
AEERT Profit for the year
EREHEERA Other comprehensive income for

BEEZERBHBER

the year
Exchange gain on translation of

EEZERER financial statements of foreign
operations
BRNXERESR Surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use
HERNEERRRERL Income tax relating to surplus on
FifE revaluation of properties held
for own use
EREEUALE Total comprehensive income for
the year
“E-BEXACTRER Balance at 30 June 2010

* HHEREREEIESRAUBRIEER *
MRS g2 [ 2 5 153,172,817,0009 7T (R —

TT N4 ¢ 2,854,119,000/7T) °

F69B EF187 B FTE 2 BRIAM 7 A A 715
v

EE

ANNUAL RePORT 2010 %R

AOARE AEHER
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ES Al FER
kx  AERE EEEE EREE REEE REER 4y Bi  AER
Property Special Non-

Share  Exchange ~revaluation capital Share  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium* profits* Total interest equity
TEr TR TR TEx  TER  TERL  TERT  TER  TER

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Hit29) (Hit30)  (Het30)
(Note 29) (Note 30)  (Note 30)

27,151 (26,604) - 320065 1,022,589 1,538,009 2,881,270 11,934 2,893,204

- - - - - (10,220) (10,220) - (10,220)

591 - - - 8,272 - 8,803 - 8,803

6,925 = = = 65,916 = 72,841 = 72,841

- = = - (127) - (127) - (127)

7,516 - - - 74,061 (10,220) 71,357 - 71,357

- - - - - 232,712 232,722 26,319 259,041

- 19,108 - - - - 19,108 - 19,108

- - 3,625 - - - 3,625 - 3,625

- - (598) = - = (598) - (598)

= 19,108 3,027 = - 232,712 254,857 26,319 281,176

34,667 (7,496) 3,027 320,065 1,096,650 1,760,571 3,207,484 38,253 3,245,737

consolidated statement of financial position.

statements.

These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s reserves
of HK$3,172,817,000 (2009: HK$2,854,119,000) in the

The notes on pages 69 to 187 form part of these financial

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The principal activities of the Group are principally
engaged in property development and investment and

provision of property management and related services.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2010 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 12 October 2010.
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2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 57 to 187 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties, financial instruments classified as at fair
value through profit or loss and land and building
classified under property, plant and equipment,
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies

below.
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2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,

are disclosed in Note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see 2.3 below) made up to 30 June

each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date that

control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
Where

unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are

the consolidated financial statements.

reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interest represents the portion
of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned
by the Group and are not the Group’s financial

liabilities.

Non-controlling interest are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to
the owners of the Company. The interest of non-
controlling shareholders may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest is the
amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another

entity.
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2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

In consolidated financial statements, acquisitions
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method. The acquisition date is the
date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
Judgement is applied in determining the acquisition
date and determining whether control is transferred

from one party to another.

The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the

acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in

the statement of comprehensive income.
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2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the reporting date. All dividends whether received
out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits

are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control over an economic activity, and exists
only when the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the activity require the

unanimous consent of the venturers.

Jointly controlled assets

The Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets
and share of any liabilities incurred jointly with
other ventures are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and classified according to
their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred
directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled

assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of
the output of jointly controlled assets, together with
its share of joint venture expenses, are recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to or from

the Group.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have
been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into Hong Kong dollars at

the closing rates.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or

loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon (where the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease) are stated at revalued amounts,
being fair value at the date of revaluation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment losses. Fair value is
determined in appraisals by external professional
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at
the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and is accumulated in the property
revaluation reserve in equity, unless the carrying
amount of that asset has previously suffered a
revaluation decrease. To the extent that any
decrease has previously been recognised in profit
or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to profit
or loss with the remaining part of the increase
dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of land and
buildings arising on revaluations is recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the property revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining

decrease is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost or revalued amounts
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Land and building 2%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

Building held under leasing agreement is
depreciated over their expected useful lives or over

term of lease, if shorter.

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained earnings on the disposal of land and

building.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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2.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a

finance lease.

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the

reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.
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2.8 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than interest in subsidiaries are set out below.
Financial assets of the Group are classified into the
following categories: held-to-maturity investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale

financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of investments not at fair value through

profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the

financial asset.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated

as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies in Note

2.17 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified as

available-for-sale financial assets.
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(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
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All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve in
equity, except for impairment losses (see the
policy below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial
asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each reporting date

subsequent to initial recognition.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence

of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or

more of the following loss events:

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e It becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation;

e Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

e A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in

which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or

loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as an impairment loss. That amount
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not recognised in the profit or loss. The
subsequent increase in fair value is recognised
in other comprehensive income. Impairment
losses in respect of debt securities are reversed
if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are

recognised in profit or loss.



2.8 TWMEE (&)

= HEERE (E)

(i) AIKLENERMEE (&)
AHHENEREEAKANE
SR - BEBERSBESERE
E 2 BREE R FEHARKE SR
ENREMEZER BUR
RRBETMEENTHREK
BEIR - B RBRE R LR
BEzHEERSTRIAL TS
T B 12 HAfE] [ 5 -

MIRBER AT R 2 2 MEE (R
BRAVEFEERZEMEENE
WE SRR T E - BERIR
TIEREEEEEM - MEKE
2R R A A e B IET AT BE
W - RIJE R AR 2 FE WL BR FORE &S
BeERARERIIK BEAKEE
MK A] RE U 1B FE W 5 PR RE
Al RSB TrE 2 S BIVE &
BEWE SR MEE - MR EE
ARAIEL A B R U RIR T B A Z (1A
TREETUEE - HRKEBER
BERNK 2RO = #&E
- BERHEMESRERIKD
BEEBRMBE SRR ES P HE

7
e

BE_FT—-FTHEXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial assets and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. The amount of the
impairment losses is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the impairment occurs

and not reversed in subsequent periods.

Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.8

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Properties held for sale

Properties for sale include completed properties for
sale and properties under development for sale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

(i) Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.20).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.
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2.9 Properties held for sale (Continued)
(ii) Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

For a transfer of investment properties
previously carried at fair value to properties for
sale, the property cost is the fair value at the

date of change in use.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments
are accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are

taken directly to profit or loss for the year.
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2.11

2,12

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
loans and overdrafts, trade and other payables and
advances from related parties (including amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders and advances
from a director). They are included in line items
in the statement of financial position as interest-
bearing borrowings under current or non-current
liabilities, trade and other payables or separately
shown on the face of the statement of financial

position.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note

2.20).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.
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2.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives including separated embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value (see Note
2.10).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.
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Financial liabilities (Continued)

Trade and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders and advances from a

director

Trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and advances from a
director are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using

the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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2.13

2,14

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where

appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment of a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.
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2.14 Leases (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with

the following exceptions:

e property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 2.7);

and

e land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see Note 2.6). For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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2.14 Leases (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.
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2.14 Leases (Continued)

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor (Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are

earned.

2.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2.15

2.16

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group
that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an

asset are considered contingent assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of

shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium reserve
(net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to

the equity transaction.
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2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised when the legal title has been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides
with the time upon signing of the sale and purchase
agreement or the issue of an occupation permit
by the relevant government authorities, whichever
is the later. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of

financial position under other payables.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in the period in which the properties are let out and

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Estate management income is recognised in the

period when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is

established.
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2.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interest in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.
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2.18

2.19

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions

after payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect to defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as

they are normally of a short term nature.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.
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2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2.21 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be

utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.
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2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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2.21 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

2.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.
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2.22 Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

e Property sales;

e  Property rental;

e Estate management; and

e Others — securities trading, investments in

derivative financial instruments and debenture

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but available-for-
sale financial assets and corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment are not allocated to a
segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s

headquarter.
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2.22 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities

which are not directly attributable to the business

activities of any operating segment and are not

allocated to a segment. These include taxation and

certain borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.

2.23

For

Related parties

the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control

over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint

venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;
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223 BAE AL (&) 2.23 Related parties (Continued)

(v) RLEaOBEMEA L RBRITH (v) the party is a close family member of a party
REKEXASE—EBIHEHE referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
fl - HEZEHHEREE 2 control, joint control or significant influence of
AT i Bk such individuals; or

(vi) BANEB S EANEE A RFEA (vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
TZEAERZES  BLEE which is for the benefit of employees of the
R E TRFEE - Group or of any entity that is a related party of

the Group.

—EERE ~ TR EERK B Jh45 T8 5T Close family members of an individual are those

AR EZEABREZERERE X family members who may be expected to influence,

BERK B TEFHE % BRI X B i or be influenced by, that individual in their

EHRETTEIREKE - dealings with the entity.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA ANNUAL ReporT 2010 3R 107



ERAMBEE  AEECHERRAAA
HMESSFMAERMIEAR -F
ZNFLA—RARUNEFRB T H
MEASEEE TN ETED
BHmEEAN R (REIHEEY
B EZER ) o

BEQENE IR
(2007 F£Z153T)
BEQHENELR fE B A

(2007 FZE3ET)

BB EAE7H WEBAR  XREHER
CHES) BHENRZRERA
BHEGIENE7H RARBYMBHRER

MHHRR 2R

(3T)
RN BEREER £Bak

E3% (LEET)
ERMBREENNER LSBTERE M
CHEY)

EREMBRELERESE KEHD
=3} B R BREER2008

ZFEIE

BRIt E SN - BRANFET T BB R TS5
EREINESS I RN PSS CRER I SE
KRB 2 mE N 25 BRAEME
N2

EBGTERIE15 (2007 FRKIET) B
BHRERZEH

RMBEFB ST ERFE15 (2007 F L£1(&
) B F EMBmEK 2B RIERE &%
ERExANTHBER Z2VEHETE
e BERBEBNMEASTTBESENE
P EmKRIBE KEF D EMB®WE
EHAR  AERRE-"MNEERFTLER
BRI ER I B0 BA FS R  ak 2RI TRE
EH N R -

BE_F—FHE/-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for the
Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 July 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)  Presentation of financial statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)  Borrowing costs

HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
controlled entity or an associate

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidation and separate financial statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combination

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)  Improving disclosures about financial instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating segments
Various Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results and
financial position for the current and prior periods have

been prepared and presented.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial

statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain
changes to the format and titles of the primary financial
statements and to the presentation of some items within
these statements. A third statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period is
required when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its financial statements or when it reclassifies
items in its financial statements. It also gives rise to

additional disclosures.
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HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial

statements (Continued)

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s
assets, liabilities, income and expenses is unchanged.
However, some items that were recognised directly
in equity are now recognised in other comprehensive
income, for example revaluation of property, plant
and equipment. HKAS 1 affects the presentation of
owner changes in equity and introduces a “Statement
of comprehensive income”. Comparatives have been
restated to conform with the revised standard. The
Group has applied changes to its accounting polices
on presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or
parent company statement of financial position at 1 July
2008 and accordingly the third statement of financial
position as at 1 July 2008 is not presented.

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a

subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise
dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or
associate in profit or loss irrespective the distributions
are out of the investee’s pre-acquisition or post-
acquisition reserves. In prior years, the Company
recognised dividends out of pre-acquisition reserves
as a recovery of its investment in the subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entity or associate (i.e. a reduction
of the cost of investment). Only dividends out of post-
acquisition reserves were recognised as income in profit

or loss.
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HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or an associate
(Continued)

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend
distribution is excessive, the investment would be tested
for impairment according to the Company’s accounting

policy on impairment of non-financial assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied
prospectively as required by these amendments to
HKAS 27 and therefore no comparatives have been

restated.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combination

The revised standard (“HKFRS 3R”) introduced major
changes to the accounting requirements for business
combinations. It retains the major features of the
purchase method of accounting, now referred to as
the acquisition method. The most significant changes
in HKFRS 3R that had an impact on the Group’s

acquisitions in 2010 are as follows:

— Acquisition-related costs of the combination are
recorded as an expense in the income statement.
Previously, these costs would have been accounted

for as part of the cost of the acquisition.

— The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
generally measured at their acquisition-date fair
values unless HKFRS 3R provides an exception and

provides specific measurement rules.
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HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combination (Continued)

— Any contingent consideration is measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration arrangement gives rise to a financial
liability, any subsequent changes are generally
recognised in profit or loss. Previously, contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition

date only if its payment was probable.

HKFRS 3R has been applied prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2009. The Group did not have business
combination transactions in the current year and
therefore, the adoption of HKFRS 3R did not have an
impact in the current year financial statements. Business
combinations for which the acquisition date is before 1

July 2009 have not been restated.

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidation and separate

financial statements

The adoption of HKFRS 3R required that the revised
HKAS 27 (“HKAS 27R”) is adopted at the same time.
HKAS 27R introduced changes to the accounting
requirements for transactions with non-controlling
(formerly called “minority”) interest and the loss of
control of a subsidiary. Similar to HKFRS 3R, the
adoption of HKAS 27R is applied prospectively. The
Group did not have transactions with non-controlling
interest in the current year and did not dispose of any
of its equity interest in its subsidiaries. Therefore, the
adoption of HKAS 27R did not have an impact in the

current year financial statements.
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HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving disclosures about

financial instruments

The amendments require additional disclosures for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value
in the statement of financial position. These fair value
measurements are categorised into a three-level fair
value hierarchy, which reflects the extent of observable
market data used in making the measurements. In
addition, the maturity analysis for derivative financial
liabilities is disclosed separately and should show
remaining contractual maturities for those derivatives
where this information is essential for an understanding
of the timing of the cash flows. The Group has
taken advantage of the transitional provisions in
the amendments and has not provided comparative

information in respect of the new requirements.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments
The adoption of HKFRS 8 has affected the identified

and reportable operating segments for the Group. In
the previous annual financial statements, segments
were identified by reference to the dominant source
and nature of the Group’s risks and returns. However,
reported segment information are now based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. The
adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in an increase in the
number of reportable segments reported. Comparatives
have been restated on a basis consistent with the new

standard.
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HKFRS 8 Operating segments (Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have
been published but are not yet effective, and have not

been adopted early by the Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the
Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Certain
other new and amended HKFRSs have been issued
but are not expected to have a material impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and addresses
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
The new standard reduces the number of measurement
categories of financial assets and all financial assets
will be measured at either amortised cost or fair value
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Fair value gains
and losses will be recognised in profit or loss except
for those on certain equity investments which will
be presented in other comprehensive income. The
directors are currently assessing the possible impact of
the new standard on the Group’s results and financial

position in the first year of application.
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Annual improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued Improvements to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards 2009. Most of the
amendments become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010. The Group
expects the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases to be
relevant to the Group’s accounting policies. Prior to
the amendment, HKAS 17 generally required a lease
of land to be classified as an operating lease. The
amendment requires a lease of land to be classified as
an operating or finance lease in accordance with the
general principles in HKAS 17. The Group will need
to reassess the classification of its unexpired leases of
land at 1 July 2010 on the basis of information existing
at the inception of those leases in accordance with
the transitional provisions for the amendment. The
amendment will apply retrospectively except where
the necessary information is not available. In that
situation, the leases will be assessed on the date when
the amendment is adopted. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the amendment on the
Group’s results and financial position in the first year of

application.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within then

next financial year are discussed below:

Estimate fair value of investment properties and

property, plant and equipment

The valuation of investment properties and land and
building classified under property, plant and equipment
under the fair value model requires management’s
input of various assumptions and factors relevant to
the valuation. The Group conducts annual revaluation,
using independent professionally qualified valuers,
based on these assumptions agreed with the valuers

prior to adoption.

Deferred tax

At 30 June 2010, a deferred tax asset of HK$25,396,000
(2009: HK$26,691,000) in relation to tax losses have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position. The recognition of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which

such a reversal takes place.
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AEBZ EBEXZBEMBHRERMETA
WEE - ARBZEXBRKBZFER
H LA

RAFERN  KEAKEXIEXRBKIE
MR 2 WA

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1
to these financial statements. Turnover of the Group is

the revenue from these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities

recognised during the year is as follows:

—E-ZF —ETNF

2010 2009

FHExT FET

HK$’ 000 HK$” 000

MHaelA Gross rental income 36,524 43,683
ESRET PN Estate management income 1,803 2,232
A B A Interest income 463 1,034
38,790 46,949

EEROANEBEZHNEERNLERG A The executive directors have identified the Group’s
B EE - MtsE2.22FE — AU o four product and service lines as operating segments as

FEENDMEWEENALIZE FHE
MR ERE REREL RN

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R

further described in Note 2.22.
These operating segments are monitored and strategic

decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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— 2010
BEHE HwEEE NEEE
Property  Property Estate Hit agE
sales rental management Others Total
TER TERT TER TERT TER
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
KA Revenue
MREPKA Revenue from external customers - 36,524 1,803 - 38,327
B E 5 3 From other segments - 2,466 17,508 - 19,974
EHREDHUWA  Reportable segment revenue - 38,990 19,311 - 58,301
EHEDHER Reportable segment profit - 227,207 1,539 16,964 245,710
FEMEENE  Depreciation of non-financial assets - 510 - - 510
BEMELAE  Increase in fair value of investment properties - 199,952 - - 199,952
fEsEm
BAREEFTA  Increase in fair value of financial assets
B&meBEE  atfair value through profit or loss - - - 2,371 2,371
RABEEM

HERARLBE  Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value
UN:topk through profit or loss

BEER - - - 12,073 12,073
ERELHER Reportable segment assets 1,436,285 3,564,248 236 98,996 5,099,765
FAERYHEH  Additions to non-current segment assets

BE(2RIA (other than financial instruments)

BRoh) S A during the year - 29,866 - - 29,866
EHRESHER  Reportable segment liabilities 26,811 252,922 89 304 280,126

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED £ (£H) BRAA ANNUAL RePorT 2010 3R 117
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—EENF 2009
WEHE  MERE  NEER
Property  Property Estate Hith X
sales rental management Others Total
THER THERT TAT THET THERT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000
KA Revenue
IREFBA Revenue from external customers = 43,683 2,232 = 45,915
REMD From other segments = 2,466 17,508 = 19,974
g EDIHBA Reportable segment revenue = 46,149 19,740 = 65,889
B & 25 Reportable segment (loss)/profit
(B8]) /&7 - (446,223) 1,986 (24,095)  (468,332)
FERMEENE  Depreciation of non-financial assets - 636 - - 636
85 R HME Impairment losses of trade and other receivables - 137 - - 137
RHRESR
BEMERNEE  Decrease in fair value of investment properties - 479,043 - - 479,043
P
EAREMETA  Decrease in fair value of financial assets
BmzeBMEE  atfair value through profit or loss
DA EERD - - - 31,565 31,565
HEZXANEE  Gainon sale of financial assets at fair value
fPAB#HEZE®  through profit or loss
EEER - - - 3,450 3,450
EHREIHEE Reportable segment assets 1,155,529 3,315,399 231 152,167 4,623,326
ERFERBHAH  Additions to non-current segment assets
EE(ERIA (other than financial instruments)
BRoN) 5 during the year - 31,327 - - 31,327
EHREDHER  Reportable segment liabilities 46,496 255,088 85 - 301,669

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R
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The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as

presented in the financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment revenue
Interest income

Elimination of inter segment revenue

Group revenue

Reportable segment profit/(loss)

Change in fair value of property,
plant and equipment

Unallocated corporate income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Profit/(Loss) before income tax

—B-®r
2010
FiB
HK$’ 000

58,301
463
(19,974)

38,790

—z-%%
2010
TR
HK$’ 000

245,710

86,542
(33,391)
(13,922)

284,939

—ZETNF
2009
FH T
HK$" 000

65,889
1,034
(19,974)

46,949

—EFNF
2009
THTT

HK$”000
(468,332)
(3,306)
17,281
(96,349)

(15,752)

(566,458)
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—E-Z2F —ZEENF

2010 2009

FET FA&T

HK$’ 000 HK$” 000

BREDIEE Reportable segment assets 5,099,765 4,623,326

HEMRAAIEE Other corporate assets 187,151 121,163

SEEE Group assets 5,286,916 4,744,489

—E-FF —ETNF

2010 2009

FER FA&TT

HK$’ 000 HK$” 000

EmEDEEE Reportable segment liabilities 280,126 301,669

I8 Taxation 3,020 3,541

iR SE B 18 Deferred tax liabilities 379,909 355,289

- /NI E Other corporate liabilities 1,378,124 1,190,786
SBRE Group liabilities

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R

2,041,179

1,851,285

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA
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BB CEFEH) Hong Kong (domicile)

R Macau

5 R PA a8 Malaysia

I ARILFME  The People’s Republic
(T E]) of China (“PRC")
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RABRIREER AR REBZETR
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The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are

divided into the following geographical areas:

IIREF S U
Revenue from ERBEE

Non-current assets

—®-BEF —TTNF

external customers

—EBE-BF —ZTTAF

2010 2009 2010 2009
TET TAET TET TAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
35,389 44,221 2,589,468 2,478,728
- - 821,523 702,045

3,393 2,673 232,628 212,825

8 55 42 55
38,790 46,949 3,643,661 3,393,653

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal place of the Group’s operation is in
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong

Kong as its country of domicile.
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—ZF —EFENEF
2010 2009
FTERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
A& 17 1% & ik B A Dividend income from equity
investments 2,823 4,020
HERAREBEFA Gain on sale of financial assets
BEafeREEE at fair value through profit or loss 12,073 3,450
b 5 N FER Net exchange gain 12,593 10,951
FE SR R & SR B B Reversal of provision for late payment
®al (i) charges (Note) 41,422 -
H At & W BR BORLE Reversal of impairment losses on
EEmE (4a2) other receivables (Note) 31,624 -
IR A Sundry income 903 6,330
101,438 24,751
Mt - Note:

ﬁi TEAH +E¢¢fW'$$
@Eﬁﬁkﬁ%)\qﬂ BNz L - B2 TR
NREREERE  TFEMNZRILILZ
BWEFRMY - Bt - FRREEE K ET

FEERAMEREFOREEE HEef
77EU%%41,422xxx»%735131,624xxx»%iio

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group has
completed the land acquisition in Hangzhou, PRC. The
respective late payment charges were waived and the deposits
paid in prior years were not forfeited by the seller. In these
respects, reversal of provision for late payment charges and
impairment losses on other receivables of HK$41,422,000 and

HK$31,624,000 respectively were made during the year.

122 ANNUAL ReporT 2010 & ¥R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA
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Interest charges on:

Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

Advances from a related company
(Note 31.1(a))

Advances from a director (Note 31.1(b))

Other incidental borrowings costs

Total borrowing costs

Less: interest capitalised into properties
under development for sale
(Note)

Note:

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAAE

Z2-2F

2010
TR

HK$’ 000

13,340

4,269
3,055

20,664

(6,742)

13,922

—EBEFNF
2009
FHE T

HK$”000

25,586

533
4,733
284

31,136

(15,384)

15,752

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.81% —
1.41% (2009: 0.88% — 9.07%) per annum.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 FE$R
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—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FTERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BB A& N, (E518) Profit/(Loss) before income tax is
MR THIEE - arrived at after charging:
BIXAN(BRES Staff costs (include directors’
<) emoluments)
e I1ER Salaries, wages and
H b 18 A other benefits 12,734 8,272
E R RIKTE R Contribution to defined
T &I contribution plans 236 214
% S5 A B Auditors’ remuneration 501 492
e Depreciation 3,441 3,640
KEYEEEHESWA  Direct outgoings in respect of
CONEREIDRN investment properties that generate
rental income 10,529 8,818
WEYFEAKRGEEEMS  Direct outgoings in respect of
WA B B 5 A investment properties that did not
generate rental income 61 63
PTHEESBMITERAEMAE Loss on change in fair value of
SEEE derivative financial instruments* 304 -
H At & WK TR 2 BB Impairment losses on other
&5 18+ receivables* - 31,761
IR N R B R R e Provision for late payment charges* - 41,422
* EERREMEEEN * Included in other operating expenses

124 ANNUAL ReporT 2010 & ¥R CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been

ERBFENEASELEXHFERR

REEE -

calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the

year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

A HIB IR Current tax
—&F - Hong Kong
REFERIA Current year
EF D Underprovision in respect of
prior years
— &5 — Overseas
RFEEBIA Current year
EEIE(Z8) Under/(Over)provision in respect
of prior years
iE FE B 1R Deferred tax
IS Current year
FRBBixH (=) Total income tax expense/(credit)
R

—-®F
2010
FiEn
HK$’ 000

1,988

418

2,406

127

311

438

2,844

23,054

25,898

—ZETNF
2009
FH T
HK$" 000

3,162

721

3,883

(12)

3,871

(65,687)

(61,816)
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HMEXH,/ (B8 2HER&IZERM
Ky &M (EiE)

E—FF
2010
FET
HK$’ 000
BRE AR R (E18) Profit/(Loss) before income tax 284,939
EEBFEFIE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
HE(ZEEAE of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 47,015
16.5%) Z Fi1A
A S 2 B 52 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,950
HERBUE 2 ISR 2 Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (22,725)
AN R Z Rl 2 TS Tax effect of differences in overseas
T2 tax rates (7,192)
RERHIEBIEZ Tax effect of unused tax losses
M not recognised 1,599
FRA AR RIS  Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised
ERZRETE tax losses utilised during the year (2,001)
RERGRERZ Tax effect of unrecognised temporary
BT E differences -
WRIEFARERZIEL  Recognition of previously unrecognised
HIEEE deferred tax asset 2,523
EEF DR Underprovision in prior year 729
TEH < 7 (1= 5) Income tax expense/(credit) 25,898

Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

—ZETNF
2009
FH T
HK$" 000

(566,458)

(93,466)

18,348
(7,534)

7,473

6,140

(988)

753

6,749
709

(61,816)
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RAQRRBEFEEAEBESEE SR, (8 Of the consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to the
1) 232,722,000/ 7t (Z T N 4F - owners of the Company of HK$232,722,000 (2009: loss
E518448,392,0008 0) 0 H P A E of HK$448,392,000), a profit of HK$39,714,000 (2009:
39,714,000 T 2w Ml (Z BT N F loss of HK$50,475,000) has been dealt with in the
E5#850,475,0007% 70 ) & AN A 5] B 75 financial statements of the Company.

HARFEE -

(@ FFERE (@) Dividends attributable to the year
—F-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
FERT T T
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
B H AR B A3 AL Interim dividend of HK3 cents
(ZZZTNF : 0/81)  (2009: Nil cents) per ordinary share 10,220 =
FR B OREAAR B Proposed final dividend of
& R4 HK4 cents
—EZANLE  0BML)  (2009: Nil cents)

(K1at) per ordinary share (Note) 13,926 -

24,146 -
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(a)

(b)

KERE (M)

—F—FF 7R ERE
BHARRIRE  HREEEREE

(U N

@S]
RE
AR E

BreE -

R E AR EFE 2 RS RN R
SEHERARAE  EHEEE—T——
FRNA=THALFEZREENF R

ﬁ

BIR AL AR

(a) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)

Scrip dividend alternative was offered to

shareholders in respect of the 2010 interim

dividend. This alternative was accepted by the

shareholders as follows:

HK$’ 000

Dividends:
Cash 1,357

Share alternative 8,863

10,220

Note:

for the year ended 30 June 2011.

—EETNF
2009
T

HK$”000

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date,

but will reflected as an appropriation of retained profits

ERFRAMERITNEFYBE (b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

ERE

EFEHRFRERABE

B0

—ZEFENF 358

year, approved and paid during the year

—2F
2010
TERT
HK$’ 000

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial years,
of Nil cents (2009: HK3 cents)

per ordinary share -

HK$”000

7,924
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(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

(Continued)

Scrip dividend alternative was offered to

shareholders in respect of the 2008 final dividend.

T - This alternative was accepted by the shareholders
as follows:
Y WrY —mme
2010 2009
FTET TAETT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
8 Dividends:
A& Cash - 2,040
PARR A B Share alternative - 5,884
- 7,924

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAA

ANNUAL RePORT 2010 FE$R
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BRERRE#EZRN, (BE) THIA

THIBR AR

2R (Ei8)

$¢J§Z?—iﬂﬁ/\ﬂﬁ“{£
wmAL (B A E
BREXKE#HT
aF, (&)

igrig 4=

BT H B M2 i
FHBIAH F R
EREF (BR)

B B
ve

R R

B 217 T A% 2 hniE
FHEUGEFRKR
BEREA,(BE)

ARTHZABREZLEEREREE
BTN FNAZ=ZTH
HER EBEEIE -

EREETE
IFFEIWES

per share is based on the following data:

Earnings/(Loss)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of
the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic and diluted

earnings/(loss) per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic earnings/(loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:

Warrants

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of

diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted

earnings/(loss)

—FF ZETNF
2010 2009

TR THET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
232,722 (448,392)

— —FTTFLF
2010 2009
299,099,205 268,012,727
20,559,959 -
319,659,164 268,012,727

No diluted loss per

share has been presented for the
year ended 30 June 2009 as the outstanding warrants

had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.
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141 EE@ S 14.1 Directors’ emoluments
RATEEZC UK ER S B4 58 The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or
ORI receivable by the directors of the Company are as
follows:
e 2 EREMR
RENRE BEAGEMLX
Salaries, Contribution
EEMe allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution BE
fees in kind plans Total
THER TERT THER TERT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—2-%F 2010
WTES: Executive directors:
it 2 Chao Sze Tsung Cecil - 6,977 - 6,977
%% Ho Sau Fun Connie 20 576 12 608
HIL G Yung Philip 20 440 12 472
Fi=EW Chao Howard 20 586 12 618
FHITES: Non-executive directors:
RERIT Leung Wing Kong Joseph* 20 - - 20
MR B Lam Ka Wai Graham* 48 - - 48
HRIE* Sun Ping Hsu Samson* 20 - - 20
ZRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 20 - - 20

168 8,579 36 8,783
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141 EEME (&)

ZEENF 2009

HMITES: Executive directors:
it Chao Sze Tsung Cecil
% Ho Sau Fun Connie
FR A Yung Philip
g Chao Howard

FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REIT* Leung Wing Kong Joseph*
MR B * Lam Ka Wai Graham*
HRIE* Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
FRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph

© BUNTEE
BE-ZEAFR-F-FFAS

ZTHRLFEYEEETHEXRET
MEREME

132 ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R

14.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

E o= -1 TERRIK

KEWMME R EIMHK

Salaries, Contribution

£ Ko allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution B
fees in kind plans Total
FTET TET FTET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- 2,453 - 2,453
20 560 12 592
20 430 12 462
20 641 12 673
20 - - 20
48 - - 48
20 - - 20
20 - - 20

168 4,084 36 4,288
*  Independent non-executive directors
No directors have waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments in respect of the years ended 30 June
2010 and 2009.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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14.2 Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2009: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2009:

two) individuals during the year are as follows:

—E—ZFF —EENF
2010 2009
TET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

e EZBEREWHMIL  Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 1,011 820

R RETE Contribution to defined

contribution plans 24 24
1,035 844

B2 ARMmT

0 to 1,000,000/ 7T

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AH
Number of individuals
—E-ZF —EENF
2010 2009

Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 2
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Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

At fair value

Carrying amount at 1 July

Exchange differences

Additions — acquisitions and subsequent
expenditure

Transfer to properties under development

Write off

Change in fair value

Carrying amount at 30 June

rEH
The Group

—z-%%
2010
TR
HK$’ 000

3,309,209
19,861

29,198

199,952

3,558,220

—EFNF
2009
THTT

HK$”000

3,795,753
(10,088)

31,050
(20,993)
(7,470)
(479,043)

3,309,209
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Investment properties of the Group are held under the

following lease terms:

EE
The Group
—E-FF —EFNF
2010 2009
FH& T FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
UREBBZ LM : Land in Hong Kong:
R HEIFE 29 Long lease 2,109,900 2,062,200
R EfFE A9 Medium-term lease 394,200 332,200
R EFEBHEINZ T4 Land outside Hong Kong:
KA FERE Freehold 232,597 212,764
R ERFEAY Short-term lease 821,523 702,045
3,558,220 3,309,209

REVMEENR _ZE—ZFRA=THK
BHEEEKRERAERERNMAST
M2REREYE - R MR BB
MOH KA B G E A B AR FT R 1T
BPRA7A] - Roma Appraisals Limited
£ B EAMSE 5P K Henry Butcher
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd EfT{h{E - EH &
g (BR)EERFHERPER -

REERH®RS H & KA MEBE
2,556,997,0008 L (Z T T L F :
2,449,464,000570) v B TR EW %
ERARER - UERRTAKEE ZRT
& (#5E38) °

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June 2010
by independent, professional qualified valuers, K.T.
Liu Surveyors Limited, Roma Appraisals Limited, Joy
Choi Arquitecta and Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
on market value basis on their existing development
stage and usage and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location
and condition. The revaluation gains/(losses) were

recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Certain investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
HK$2,556,997,000 (2009: HK$2,449,464,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 38).
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& The Group
FELHER
BFEEA B
2 B E EER
landand EBFERE
building Furniture, SSEREH
held for own fittings and Motor
use carried office  vehicles and By
at fair value equipment  accessories Total

TAT TATL TAT TAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

R-FBBN\EtA-H

At 1 July 2008

AR Cost 7,835 6,626
e Valuation - -
ZEHME Accumulated depreciation (5,761) (1,575)
REEFR Net book amount 2,074 5,051
BE_BRTAEAA=TH Year ended 30 June 2009
BRI (E %5 Opening net book amount 2,074 5,051
ER%%E Exchange differences 7) 3)
byl Additions 277 63
ik Depreciation (636) (1,325)
B Revaluation - -
HREEEFE Closing net book amount 1,708 3,786
R-ZBEANEAA=THR At 30 June 2009 and

—EEAFLA-H 1 July 2009
A Cost - 8,093 6,673 14,766
16 Valuation 80,774 = = 80,774
ZIE Accumulated depreciation (2,774) (6,385) (2,887) (12,046)
REEFSR Net book amount 78,000 1,708 3,786 83,494

—— —— —— e——

BE-ZZEAEXA=1H Year ended 30 June 2010

B8R [ (3 38 Opening net book amount 78,000 1,708 3,786 83,494
S ER Exchange differences - 4 1 5
20 Additions - 668 155 823
ik Depreciation (1,625) (510) (1,321) (3,456)
B Revaluation 3,625 = = 3,625
BMAREERE Closing net book amount 80,000 1,870 2,621 84,491
R=ZB-ZFXA=1H At 30 June 2010

KA Cost = 8,781 6,844 15,625
fhE Valuation 84,399 - - 84,399
ZEtIE Accumulated depreciation 4,399) (6,911) (4,223) (15,533)

REEFHE Net book amount 80,000 1,870 2,621 84,491
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Depreciation expenses of HK$3,441,000 (2009:
HK$3,640,000) has been expensed in administrative
expenses and HK$15,000 (2009: HK$15,000) has been

capitalised in properties under development for sales.

The Group’s land and building are situated in Hong
Kong and held under long lease. The land and building
were revalued on 30 June 2010 by independent,
professional qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited
on market value basis and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location

and condition.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation.

If the land and building were stated on the historical

cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

AEH

The Group
—E-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
FAT FHETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
X 2R Cost 54,000 54,000
23 E Accumulated depreciation (3,240) (2,160)
REFE Net book amount 50,760 51,840

AEEZ T MEREFREER 2KRE
8 /80,000,000 . (ZEZENF :
78,000,000/ 7)) E B AEE ZR1TE
KVEER AR (M 7E38) -

All the Group’s land and building with an aggregate
carrying value at the reporting date of HK$80,000,000
(2009: HK$78,000,000) were pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 38).
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Jointly controlled asset

On 30 March 1993, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to jointly
redevelop a property known as South View Garden,
located at Aberdeen, Hong Kong. In accordance with
the terms of the agreement, the expenses incurred for
and the income arising from the redevelopment are
to be shared between the Group and its joint venture

partner in the proportion of 47.5:52.5.

On 1 June 2009, the joint venture arrangement was
dissolved and all jointly controlled assets and liabilities
were split between the Group and the independent third

party based on the aforesaid proportion.

The Group’s share of the results of the joint venture
which is included in the consolidated income statement

is as follow:

—ZF —EENF
2010 2009
FHxT FH&TT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- 19
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rEE
The Group
—E2-ZEF —ETNF
2010 2009
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RBEX Mortgage loans 1,625 1,661
AR Provision for doubtful debts (1,505) (1,521)
120 140
R —F R B2 & 1n Portion due within one year included
Bt ARYE 5 R under trade and other receivables
NEAMME B ERRA (12) (14)
EMBEEZ Non-current portion included
ERBE D under non-current assets 108 126

HIEZBERAEERRIZETRER
FEFEA.5%E1.75% (ZTTNF :
1.5%%E1.75%) st EF 8 - IRIBERAE
RAEE -

EERIRSEHERTEBARN K&
EEETEERAEBUFEEBAZE

WRIEE TR AR HBREREOL - 2
A IRIB E R YRR R REA
MRS BEAEE IR IR -

The mortgage loans are secured and interest-bearing at
1.5% to 1.75% (2009: 1.5% to 1.75%) above the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate per annum. The mortgage loans

are repayable by monthly instalments.

Before accepting and approving a new loan to a debtor,
the Group performs credit check to assess the potential
debtor’s credit quality. All of the Group’s mortgage
loan receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment. The impaired mortgage loans receivables
are due from debtors experiencing financial difficulties

that were in default or delinquency of payments.
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Movements on the provision for doubtful debts of

mortgage loan receivables are as follows:

rEH

The Group
—E—FF —TENF
2010 2009
FExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ntH—H At 1 July 1,521 1,537
JFE UK X I8 Rl 1B [B] 2 Impairment loss reversed (16) (16)
RANB=+H At 30 June 1,505 1,521

BREEAEE ZIRIBERERKIEZ
FREEROBIT(ZEZTNF : 3,0008
o) EWRERREEAER=EAE L
W8 B HEE -

R-ZT—ZTFERNA=1+H KAEEERK
BIBE X A120,0008 T (Z TN F
137,000/ 7T) 1 R i@ HA sl 4 R 1B - 1t
FAEINNBEBARPILREINEITE
(R ok > )

BB BB R E 2 B % 18 & 5K &
BHEBABERARNEEERIIHER
ek - RBBELE  EFSHEES
UL FERKIELREEH  BHEEE
EUEBATE  MUEFRFEABRZE
A A2 B U E -

Included in the Group’s mortgage loan receivables
balance are debtors with a carrying amount of HK$Nil
(2009: HK$3,000) which are past due for not more than
3 months as at the reporting date for which the Group

has not been provided.

As at 30 June 2010, mortgage loans receivables of
HK$120,000 (2009: HK$137,000) were neither past due
nor impaired. These related to a number of diversified

debtors for whom there was no recent history of default.

Mortgage loans receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to debtors that has good track record
of credit with the Group. Based on past credit history,
management believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
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HEtemEEBRENTKE Other financial assets include the following
investments:
rEHE AT
The Group The Company
—B-2F _—_TTAF -5 —"ZTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET THETT FHET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000 HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
FAEZFHA  Held-to-maturity debt
(EE securities, at
E#iHE amortised cost
(EEs Debenture 1,452 - - -
AHEER Available-for-sale
TREE financial assets
IF T Rk Unlisted equity
& 75 securities - — - —
1,452 - - -
VIKEEIHPNES 19.1 Held-to-maturity debt securities
BEHFZEMERFERI3% » FFF The debenture return interest of 13% per annum
KE—R  R_TE—RF+_HEZ payable semi-annually, and mature in December
H - XS5 T HXEFFRRBI o it 2015. The counterparty has a minimum B1 rating.
HEEARDBHNNERME - None of these assets is past due or impaired.
RIE—ZEFNA=ZTHHKEERN The fair value of these investments at 30 June 2010
N EEA1,452,0007% o R IE was approximately HK$1,452,000, which had been
WITIRB 2 REER - determined by reference to the price quoted by

bank.



BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

192 A tHESREE 19.2 Available-for-sale financial assets
AEERAEAT
The Group and the Company
—E-FF —EENEF
2010 2009
FERT THETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
JE LT RAERE 5 Unlisted equity securities

X 7S Cost 15,541 15,541
EEtREEE Accumulated impairment losses (15,541) (15,541)
JEETMRERESFRER AT S L The unlisted equity investments is not stated at fair
A TS SR - UL AR 25t value but at cost less any accumulated impairment
REEESE BHREAENAR losses as they do not have a quoted market price
BEMAFTHEERKA @ REEMGETHY in an active market. The fair value cannot be
BERERBHET  UWE2EELGE measured reliably as the range of reasonable fair
EEHAAREBE- value estimates is significant and the probabilities

of various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.
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Impairment loss
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(@)

(b)
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ARrHE

The Company
—F-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
TR TAETT
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
275,284 275,284
(17,893) (17,893)
257,391 257,391

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured and have no fixed repayment term but
repayment is not expected to be within twelve
months from the reporting date. Included in the
amounts due from and to subsidiaries are amounts
(net of provision) totalling HK$438,133,000
(2009: HK$498,440,000) and HK$Nil (2009:
HK$85,365,000) respectively which are interest-
bearing at floating rates. At the reporting date,
the effective interest rate is 4.5% (2009: 4.5% to
4.75%) per annum. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries
(net of provision) totalling HK$451,571,000 (2009:
HK$429,504,000) which are interest-bearing at
fixed rate. At the reporting date, the effective
interest rate of these amounts range from 0.2% to
1% (2009: 0.2% to 1%) per annum. The carrying
amounts of the amounts due approximate their fair

values.
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(c)

R=E—FFXA=+A  EBH
BRAIZERNT :
MRS/
RenE
Place of
i) incorporation or
Name registration/operation
ACE Cosmos Finance REREES
Limited British Virgin Islands
(//BV'//)
HEERARLA) &R
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong
SHMFEEARA &R
Cheuk Nang Property Hong Kong
Management Company
PAHERERRBEARAA &R
Dun Man Secretarial and Hong Kong
Management Services Limited
BERABRAR! &R
Colden Scheme Investment Hong Kong
Limited*
REREARLH) &
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong
BEEXARLA) &R
Lo & Son Land Investment Hong Kong
Company Limited
BREXARAH] &R
Lucky Faith Properties Limited Hong Kong

(c) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June

2010 are as follows:

BRTRAER/
R A
Particulars of
issued ordinary BECRELA

Proportion of
ownership interest

share capital/
registered capital

HE B
Directly Indirectly
10,000f G 15T 72.42% =
10,000 US$1
shares
RERIAT 100% =
2 HK$1 shares
URERIET 100% -
2 HK$1 shares
WRERI0%ET 100% =
2 HK$10 shares
2ERIET 100% =
2 HK$1 shares
2ERIEL 100% =
2 HK$1 shares
3,000/ B %1007 T = 100%
3,000
HK$100 shares
RERIAT 100% =

2 HK$1 shares

IRER

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

HWERE
Property trading

ESFE:

Property management services

WEREERE
Provision of secretarial and
management services

WELE

Property investment

RIRER
Mortgage lending, property
investment and development

HWERERER
Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment



(© (&)
3L IAR
ReEBE
Place of
i) P incorporation or
Name registration/operation
Martego Sdn Bhd RFE
Malaysia
BIRERARAR &R
New Grow Development Limited Hong Kong
Power Tripod Limited i
Hong Kong
EEREARAF B
Power Wide Development Limited Hong Kong
EREHERE (RI) BRAF" il
PRC
REREBRAR Bt
Success Well Investment Limited® Hong Kong
AR (TM) BRAF &R
Top Regent (Asia) Limited Hong Kong
BAERBRAR &R
Yorkshon Development Limited? Hong Kong
AAEHERE (M) BRAR il
PRC

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAE
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(c) (Continued)

BRATRKER/
EREN
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

5,000,0008%
GRIMEH

5,000,000
RMB1 shares

10,0008 &R 17T
10,000 HK$1 shares

10,0000 %1787

10,000 HK$1 shares

WRERIET
2 HK$1 shares

364,000,000 A B2
RMB364,000,000

URERIET
2 HK$1 shares
100 BR1IET

100 HK$1 shares

URERIET
2 HKS$1 shares

29,002,320% 7T
1US$29,002,320

KR RELP
Proportion of
ownership interest

ER L3
Directly  Indirectly

- 100%

100% =

- 100%

100% =

- 100%

- 100%

- 71.69%

= 100%

- 100%

IRER

Principal activities

HERERER

Property investment and
development

WERE

Property investment

HERRLEE
Property development and
trading

MERE
Property investment and
investment holding

HWERERRRE
Property development and
trading

HWERE

Property investment

HWERARER
Property investment and
development

HERARER
Property investment and
development

HWERRE

Property development

ANNUAL RePORT 2010 FE$R
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© (8

fOMBARIZREC KA T IRITIE
BRITHASEELERZ D
W (faE38) o

Y RARABEEIEMITREER -
EERREEATELARE ZXE
SEENTEZMBRAREHHN L

RA o LHNERR RN HE B
NAZHBEEEERBRITE -

2 MES Club debenture

B ATE SR A E IR R A RUE B B S
AR o
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(c) (Continued)

Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to
banks as security for bank loan facilities granted to
the Group (Note 38).

#  Companies not audited by Grant Thornton.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

rEHE
The Group
—E-FF —ETENF
2010 2009
FERT THETT
HK$’000 HK$”000

950 950

Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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AEE

The Group
—B-2F —ZEENEF
2010 2009
TR THET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
TERPYE Properties under development 1,065,745 798,297
BRI Completed properties 368,772 347,878
1,434,517 1,146,175

BIEE B 6,742,000 L (Z 2T A
£ 15,384,000 0) R BERA Y
BB EREB081I%ET41% (ZF
ZTNF : 0.88%%E9.07%) °

FEY X ERRME(EE378,745,00078 7T
(Z=EZNF : 355,826,000 7C) B F
EHERIT - BRI TAREE 2 RITH
& (f15#38) -

RZE-—ZTFEFR_ZFTENFRA=T+
B FTAEERTYEBAERS ARE
BT ABAGTAERELE -

Total borrowing costs capitalised for the year included
in properties under development amounted to
HK$6,742,000 (2009: HK$15,384,000) with effective
capitalisation rate of 0.81% — 1.41% (2009: 0.88% -

9.07%) per annum.

Properties for sale with carrying value of
HK$378,745,000 (2009: HK$355,826,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 38).

As at 30 June 2010 and 2009, all properties under
development are expected to be completed and sold

more than twelve months after the reporting date.
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rEH
The Group
—E-ZF —ETNF
2010 2009
FTERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BRAAREES AEBEN  Financial assets at fair value through
TRMEE profit or loss
RHIEER Held for trading
MREE ETTREE S Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 97,544 152,167
BRAAREHEFAEZREHN  Financial liabilities at fair value
TEas through profit or loss
FIEEBE X AFN Held for trading or not qualifying
BEEHOT A as hedges
TRTA Derivative financial instruments
BHEIUTELA Securities derivatives 304 —

ETAEENRARBETG ABEZN
CREERBREBEEEMED A A
68,864,000 T (ZZEZNF : 08 T)
520,406,000 T (ZZEZENF : 08
J0) B FEBIRIT  LWERER FASEE
ZRITBMERAEBRNITEER T A
(H1a£38) o

AREERELTESKESFITETAEZ
AAEBEEREME32.7MMATE -

Certain financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss of the Group with an aggregate carrying value at
the reporting date of HK$68,864,000 (2009: HK$Nil)
and HK$20,406,000 (2009: HK$Nil) were pledged

to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and

derivative financial instruments of the Group (Note 38)

respectively.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed

securities and securities derivative have been measured

as described in Note 32.7.
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FEWE ZRFA Trade receivables
wE=4% From third parties

HEUWBERF  Other receivables

FET B K3 E € Prepayments and deposits
Hb W R  Other receivables

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAA
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AEE ARFE

The Group The Company
—B-2F " TTNF ZB-FTF —ITThF
2010 2009 2010 2009
FERT THETT FERT TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$"000
422 918 - -
3,327 11,627 - -
3,163 2,606 1 1
6,490 14,233 1 1
6,912 15,151 1 1
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D RN RIE -

EXERREWE S N H M EWERR
ZARBEAEEFRELESE XD 5
REeBZBHMARRE -

RIERERBEELE  BREZERRZ
BREe DT T -

DH30K 0 — 30 days

31 - 60K 31 - 60 days
61 — 90K 61 — 90 days
HBBIOKR Over 90 days

AREBE—ERE B 25 EKRRIZ
BRI MEREETESHERERBER
BiERE - E-_TTFER-_ZTTNF
NA=ZTHIEMESFE @ WEEBEE
FRIAFE R e W R BURBE B 18 -
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The trade receivables of the Group represent rental and
management fee in arrears. Before accepting any new
customers, the Group performs credit check to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and tenants are
required to pay deposits. All invoices are due upon

presentation.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair
values of trade and other receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these

amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the debit note or invoice dates, the ageing

analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

REH

The Group
—E-FF —ZEENF
2010 2009
THERT T
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
256 499
56 83
- 155
110 181
422 918

At each reporting date the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on
receivables through the provision account for the two

years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009.
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Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$422,000 (2009:
HK$918,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not been provided.
These receivables are related to a number of diversified
debtors that has a good track record of credit with
the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. Except for
deposits received from tenants, the Group does not hold

any other collateral over these balances.

No amounts in relation to other receivables were past

due at the reporting date (2009: HK$Nil).
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ZRIEAEIRE AENEBRTER The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have
H - HEREEHEARLBEMES ° no fixed repayment term. The carrying amounts of the

amounts due approximate their fair values.

FENRIRIAEBUET - REREH - Details of amounts due from related companies are as
Eytikgb B2 RBIERE - follows. At the reporting date, there was no provision
had been made for non-repayment of the amounts.
ERHEAK
BRRE
Maximum RZ-Z2-FF RIEENF
amount NAZt+H&H tA-REHR
outstanding Balance at Balance at
BEATEE BEEE during 30 June 1 July
Name of related companies Connected director the year 2010 2009
TET TET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Bt B REMAR AR B EEL
Cecil Chao & Associate Limited Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 1,200 1,200 600
KEBRAA HEEEL
Resource Development Limited Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil 300 - 300

1,200 900
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Trade payables
To third parties

Other payables
Tenant deposit
Other payable and

accruals

FRBRFREH - At - BRNEZRE
ERZEHERRREERAEE

ZEBEHE -
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BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

FEE ARF

The Group The Company
—EB-2F —_TTHhF ZB-BF —_TTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
FTHERT TAETT FTHERT TAETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
921 817 - =
7,030 7,001 - =
33,214 55,170 332 424
40,244 62,171 332 424
41,165 62,988 332 424

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying

values of trade and other payables are considered to be

a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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DR30K
31 - 60K
61 — 90K
B EI0K
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ERBREFTR
—FRF sk

BB 8 22 2B 10
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Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the

trade payables as of the reporting date is as follows:

0 — 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

Bank loans, secured
Portion due within one year or
on demand included under

current liabilities

Non-current portion included

under non-current liabilities

REH

The Group
—E-FF —ZEENF
2010 2009
TR T
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
606 517
48 47
48 48
219 205
921 817

A

The Group
—g-®F  —TTAF
2010 2009
TR THET
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
1,332,937 1,118,000
(171,841) (536,000)
582,000

1,161,096

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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RITERZBHABAOT - The maturity of the above bank borrowings is as
follows:
rEE
The Group

—E-=2F —ETNF

2010 2009

FHET FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$” 000

BN R —F A Within one year or on demand 171,841 536,000
HE—FENS More than one year but not more

A\ p—- than two years 51,000 135,000
BBE—FETE More than two years but not more

RAF than five years 1,110,096 447,000

1,332,937 1,118,000

FIEERESIHAEREEEDR  $FRTE All borrowings are interest-bearing at floating rates. The

HRNEE R 2 ERAEA1.09% (=T effective interest rate of the bank loans at the reporting

TNRF :2.2%). date is 1.09% (2009: 2.2%).

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA ANNUAL ReporT 2010 3R 155
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EER BN B E R IRER RS ZEE A
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Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal
taxation rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%).

BT The movement during the year in the deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

REH
The Group

—E-FF —_ETNF

2010 2009

FTHET T

HK$’ 000 HK$"000

At 1 July 355,289 422,004

Exchange differences 968 (1,028)

Recognised in profit or loss 23,054 (65,687)
Recognised in other comprehensive

income 598 -

At 30 June 379,909 355,289

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

E DA E

Accelerated MEEM

tax Revaluation e

depreciation  of properties Total

TET THET THET

HK$’000 HK$"000 HK$’000

RZZEZENFLHA—H At 1 July 2008 8,112 433,385 441,497

=% Exchange differences - (1,028) (1,028)

BEEEmHER Recognised in profit or loss (3,178) (55,311) (58,489)
RZFFAFNA=THAR At 30)une 2009 and

—EZNAFLA—H 1 July 2009 4,934 377,046 381,980

B 5t =5 Exchange differences - 968 968

BEERRTER Recognised in profit or loss 627 21,132 21,759
B H th 2 E W s R Recognised in other

comprehensive income - 598 598

R=-ZE-ZFFXA=1+H At 30 June 2010 5,561 399,744 405,305

RIER B S = Deferred tax assets

REER

Tax losses

B TT

HK$

RZZEZENFE+H—H At 1 July 2008 (19,493)

BB P ER Recognised in profit or loss (7,198)

RZZBEZENFARAA=ZTBER_ZFZTNFELH—H At30)June 2009 and 1 July 2009 (26,691)

EEBRPER Recognised in profit or loss 1,295

R-B-BF XA

=+

At 30 June 2010

(25,396)
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B IR SLRR R RER AT

position are as follows:

EXERIAEE
BEEMRIARE

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

B 75 AR i 3R HE AR
FEER R B B8R

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised

in the statement of financial position

RWERELEBBEE

FR A 5 UK TE B AR 2R O8 B 2ROR - i &
AL E51832,785,0008 T (—Z T T A,
£ : 37,097,000 70) RIELEIHE
o RIBFEFMBRD] - ZERIEEER

EERERE o legislation.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial

& %
The Group
—E2-2F —TThF
2010 2009
FERT THETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(25,396) (26,691)
405,305 381,980
379,909 355,289

Unrecognised deferred tax asset

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax asset
in respect of tax losses at HK$32,785,000 (2009:
HK$37,097,000) due to unpredictability of future profit

streams. The tax losses do not expire under current tax
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BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

EERE BROTRARRE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
it BB ®E TiEn kB 8E TiEn
Number Number
Notes of shares HK$' 000 of shares HK$' 000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
At 1 July 2008 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 264,131,642 26,413
Issue of shares pursuant to
scrip dividend scheme 1(a) - - 6,922,349 692
Issue of shares by exercise
of warrants 2(b) - - 456,705 46
At 30 June 2009
and 1 July 2009 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 271,510,696 27,151
Issue of shares pursuant to
scrip dividend scheme 1(b) - - 5,908,869 591
Issue of shares by exercise
of warrants 2 - - 69,247,952 6,925
At 30 June 2010 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 346,667,517 34,667

Notes:

1. Scrip dividend scheme

(@ RZZEZENF+=-_A+AH XA (@ On 10 December 2008, the Company issued and

AIERER-_ZEZENFE+— A+t allotted a total of 6,922,349 ordinary shares of

H Ao B9 LA R AR R 5T &) 0 1A0.85 HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$0.85 to the

B ITEIT A D B AR EE0. 18 T shareholders who elected to receive shares in the

BIRL D - ££6,922,3490% 4 TRt — Company in lieu of cash for the 2008 final dividend

T NFREAKBREZARKE pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by

ZIRE S HREROEENEE the Company on 17 November 2008. An amount of

#2%E5,192,0008 TEEHZE_F HK$5,192,000 in excess of par value was credited

ZNFANA=ZTHIEFEERE to the share premium account for the year ended 30
R EERR o June 20009.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =g (%) BRAA ANNUAL ReporT 2010 3R
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Hret - (&)

1. BRMREGE & (8)

(b)

RZZE—ZFTFANA  AAFA
BER-ZZE—ZEFRAAT=ZHA
5 89 LA RR X B 5H &l - BA1.508 7T
BTN B B AREE0. 18 T &I A
7+ 5,908,869 4 T ot —F —
TFEREARSERZURRE ZR
R oo R AR T E 8 s (B AR KR
8,272,000 TEHEHE_T—%
FRNAZTHIEFEERER
MR EER ©

2. ARRKRER

(a)

RZZTEZEEF-_ANH ' AAQF
BERZRIESTHERARKKRMD
Tzééff*fﬁ:bﬂﬁzé”*(mog:ﬂ
RREE]) RZTZTLF=A
+ =8 ' ARAFETT37,175,810
72009= A R #EFE - 2009=
ARBREENFEAATR_ZEE
tF_A+ZHEZZTZTNF=
A+— RN ZREETRSE
T (AR REARMD - BEER =
T+ F = A 1720083 /% #E
F(ERZZEZTNFHAER) &
ZEE L FERITETNFRTHR
iR RBEERZ-ZZZFT/\F
—HA—BRAEBEFRA487E T -
FR - WE2009= ARREET
SR 229,441,102192009=
ARBREBEER=_ZEZTNF_A
+—BRIHEm -

Notes: (Continued)

1. Scrip dividend scheme (Continued)

(b)

On 4 June 2010, the Company issued and allotted a
total of 5,908,869 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
in the Company at HK$1.50 to the shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of
cash for the 2010 interim dividend pursuant to the
scrip dividend scheme announced by the Company
on 12 May 2010. An amount of HK$8,272,000
in excess of par value was credited to the share

premium account for the year ended 30 June 2010.

2. Bonus warrants

(a)

On 8 February 2007,

resolution to approve the issue of one bonus warrant

the Company passed a

for every five existing shares of the Company held
by the shareholders (“2009 February Warrants”). On
12 February 2007, the Company issued 37,175,810
units of 2009 Warrants. The holders of 2009
February Warrants are entitled to subscribe at any
time during 12 February 2007 to 11 February 2009
for fully paid shares of the Company at an initial
subscription price of HK$5 per share (subject to
adjustment).
March 2007 (which were expired in April 2008) and
the rights issue in 2008 and 2007, the subscription

Following the 2008 Warrants issued in

price was adjusted to HK$4.87 per share on 1
February 2008. During the year ended 30 June 2009,
no 2009 February Warrants were exercised and
the remaining 29,441,102 units of 2009 February

Warrants were expired on 11 February 2009.
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2. AFRRER A
by R—ZEZEAFWANRA  KQA

BERZRIESFE KK G
?égé’f**fﬁ};ﬁﬂﬂ%%’i (fr2010®
ARBEE]) RZZETENFH

AmAB AR 7%1745 175,665

720100 A RREFE - 20100

ARBEFNFEAITR_ZEE
NFEFRAAMBE-_Z—ZFHA

/m B A9 2 R BB (E & AR0.757% 7T
(ATAAE) RBEBRMD -BEER=S
TNFE+—HET2010+— AR
iR REEER=ZZNF
+—A=+HABAEE=EFH0.73
BIT o F A - FE1T 544,517,697
B (ZZFEZENF : 456,70513)
20100 A RAxEF & - L3317
44,517,697 (ZZEF L F :
456,7050%) TR0 1B T 2 F A% ©
£ T 2201,263152010H A R
HEER_ZE—ZFHAANAE
gﬂﬁ/ﬁf’

f%%@hiJr B+=8: =X«
NRBRBERERIESEAR TR
A% {7 m] 2 — (D R AR #EFE ([2010
+—ARKEE] - R=ZZTZT N
F+—HA=Z+=H KA FET
31,027,791{72010+ — A R A #E
Fe2010t— ARBKEFENIZS
ATEAf§EHE+*H F=
SES —ZEF+—HA=+=H
LMJJ*/FE?JUE%EtHx1.60,an(Taﬂ
) RERD r%%b’\:??\——i
HA %*éﬁzoﬂﬁﬁ RIRERE - R
BEERZ-Z— ?Eﬂiﬂ_ﬂLﬂ
Esﬁmiﬂ%.%;‘%ﬁoimv
Eﬁ 524,717 4941ﬁzo1o+— A
R FE 1R - £ EE1T24,717,494
HXHXO.LETEZ?F)THX fEF=F—
THFXNA=+H" #£%66,310,297
2010+ — ARIKEE W AR W 1T
5 o

BE_FT—-FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Notes: (Continued)

2. Bonus warrants (Continued)

(b)

On 8 April 2009, the Company passed a resolution
to approve the issue of one bonus warrant for every
six existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2010 May Warrants”). On 4 May
2009, the Company issued 45,175,665 units of 2010
May Warrants. The holders of 2010 May Warrants
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 4 May
2009 to 4 May 2010 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.75
per share (subject to adjustment). Following the
2010 November Warrants issued in November 2009,
the subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.73
per share on 25 November 2009. During the year,
44,517,697 (2009: 456,705) new shares of HK$0.10
each share were issued upon the exercise of
44,517,697 (2009: 456,705) units of 2010 Warrants.
The remaining 201,263 units of 2010 May Warrants
were expired 4 May 2010.

On 13 November 2009,
resolution to approve the issue of one bonus warrant

the Company passed a

for every ten existing shares of the Company held by
the shareholders (“2010 November Warrants”). On
23 November 2009, the Company issued 31,027,791
units of 2010 November Warrants. The holders of
2010 November Warrants are entitled to subscribe at
any time during 23 November 2009 to 23 November
2010 for fully paid shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$1.60 per share
Following the 2011 May
Warrants issued in May 2010, the subscription price
was adjusted to HK$1.56 per share on 25 May 2010.
During the year, 24,717,494 new shares of HK$0.10
each per share were issued upon the exercise of
24,717,494 units of 2010 November Warrants. As at
30 June 2010, 6,310,297 units of 2010 November
Warrants remained outstanding.

(subject to adjustment).
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Notes: (Continued)

2

Bonus warrants (Continued)

(d) On 21 April 2010, the Company passed a resolution
to approve the issue of one bonus warrant for every
fifteen existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2011 May Warrants”). On 20 May
2010, the Company issued 22,712,263 units of 2011
May Warrants. The holders of 2011 May Warrants
are entitled to subscribe at any time during 20 May
2010 to 20 May 2011 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$1.70
per share (subject to adjustment). During the year,
12,761 new shares of HK$0.10 each per share were
issued upon the exercise of 12,761 units of 2011
May Warrants. As at 30 June 2010, 22,699,502 units
of 2011 May Warrants remained outstanding.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 to Note 2 above
rank pari passu with the existing shares of the Company

in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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The Company

1R R A R 1
R 2 % B Special REEA mE
Share capital Retained Total
premium reserve profits reserves
THET TET TET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Balance at 1 July 2008 1,017,127 320,065 204,252 1,541,444

2008 final dividend

approved paid - - (7,924) (7,924)
Issue of share capital
Pursuant to scrip dividend

scheme 5,192 - - 5,192
By exercise of warrants 297 = = 297
Share issue expenses (27) - - (27)
Transactions with owners 5,462 — (7,924) (2,462)
Loss for the year = = (50,475) (50,475)

Total comprehensive
loss for the year = = (50,475) (50,475)

Balance at 30 June 2009
and 1 July 2009 1,022,589 320,065 145,853 1,488,507

2010 interim dividend

approved and paid - - (10,220) (10,220)
Issue of share capital
Pursuant to scrip

dividend scheme 8,272 - - 8,272
By exercise of warrants 65,916 - - 65,916
Share issue expenses (127) = = (127)
Transactions with owners 74,061 = (10,220) 63,841
Profit for the year - - 39,714 39,714

Total comprehensive income
for the year = = 39,714 39,714

Balance at 30 June 2010 1,096,650 320,065 175,347 1,592,062
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BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The exchange reserve for the Group has been set up
and will be dealt with according to the accounting

policy set out in Note 2.5 to the financial statements.

Special capital reserve arose from reduction in issued
share capital on 26 March 2001 with Court approval on
24 April 2001.

Pursuant to the undertakings given to the Court, the
credit amount arising from capital reduction has been
credited to a special capital reserve in the books of
account of the Company. So long as there shall remain
any debt or claim against the Company outstanding
at the date when the reduction of capital took effect
which, if such date were the date of the commencement
of the winding up of the Company, would have been
admissible in proof against the Company and the
person entitled to the benefit thereof shall not have
agreed otherwise, such reserve (i) would not be treated
as realised profit; and (ii) for so long as the Company
shall remain a listed company (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance); would be treated as an
undistributable reserve of the Company for the purposes
of Section 79C of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
or any statutory re-enactment or modification thereof,
provided that the amount standing to the credit of the
special capital reserve may be reduced by the aggregate
of any increase in the issued share capital or in the
share premium account of the Company resulting from
an issue of shares for cash or other new consideration
or upon a capitalisation of distributable reserves after

the reduction took effect.
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31.1In addition to the transactions/information

disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, during the year, the Group had the

following material transactions with connected and

related parties:

e 3 |
The Group
—B-BF —ETNE
2010 2009
i3 THER FET
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FehAMEDRES Salaries and other short-term
BAXATEER employee benefits paid to
EBAR 8RB key management personnel,
REEMT14 including amounts paid to
TARAEEME the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 14 9,818 5,132
FISR Tt SEEM  Interest paid to Cecil Chao &
BB A ([CCAL) Associate Limited (“CCAL") @) - 533
MERTHEEEEL Interest paid to Dr. Chao Sze
Tsung Cecil (b) 4,269 4,733
F [ FCCAL Fees paid to CCAL (c)
ARk ERER Architect and other professional
service fees 4,342 8,371
XA Pt BRE Fees paid to Cecil Chao Design
(&FM)BRAT] (Macau) Limited (“CCA Macau”) (d)
([ CCA Macau]) Architect fees
Al & M 8,158 11,223
He WA Rental income received from (e)
MABBRAR(TRAL)  Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”) 60 60
CCAL CCAL 630 911
THERRA Administration fee received from )
A Yan Yin 72 72
CCAL CCAL 240 240
XA FHEE Commission paid to Szehope
ARARMAS Securities Company Limited (g) 175 117
N FREER Rental charge paid to Resource
ERRAAES Development Limited (g) 3,760 -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BIRAAE

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 E$R
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31.1 (&)
(a)

EBRE_ZTTNFA=1H
WFENRN - CCALB AR R AR
HEXEREEEERBEZ
BN NARANZRBTHE
BE XA EMN1.8%:T E 2 F
B e ARARAESFRFTERFTHE
tHEBIELACCALZEERE
=mHBA ZERCHEHEZ
ETNFAA=ZTHLEFER

EEBEE -

it ZE T ARNEBRIRHE
BEHREREETERBHZB
FARBEMNRELHE
BEXRFEM.8%(ZZEZH
F1.8%):TEZAE - RN
T—ZEFXA=1+8H1L®
tEFTLETAER ZBEX
#343,854,0008 L (ZEE N,
F :71,477,000/ L) - it
BT HR IS ERANEEE
BUEBREEZASEEEERLE
NRIE -

CCALIKIREE J7 7] & Z TRk iR
HEEREMABIRS T AE
o

CCA MacaufkIBE S5 E 2
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31.1 (Continued)

(a)

(c)

(e)

During the year ended 30 June 2009, CCAL
has provided unsecured advances, which have
no fixed repayment term, to the Group at 1.8%
above the Hong Kong dollar prime rate per
annum. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil, a director
and substantial shareholder of the Company, is
a director and beneficial owner of CCAL. The
loan was fully repaid during the year ended 30
June 2009.

Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has provided
unsecured advances, which have no fixed
repayment term, to the Group at 1.8% (2009:
1.8%) above the Hong Kong dollar prime rate
per annum. At 30 June 2010, the advances
from Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil amounted to
HK$43,854,000 (2009: HK$71,477,000). Dr.
Chao Sze Tsung Cecil has confirmed that he
will not request repayment of these advances

until such time as the Group is in a position to

repay.

CCAL rendered architectural and related
services to the Group on terms agreed between

both parties.

CCA Macau rendered architectural services
to the Group on terms agreed between both
parties. Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the

beneficial owner of CCA Macau.

Certain properties were leased to Yan Yin and
CCAL as office premises on terms mutually

agreed between both parties.
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31.1 (Continued)
(f) The Group charged administration fee for Yan
Yin and CCAL for handling services rendered

on terms agreed between both parties.

(g) Dr. Chao Sze Tsung Cecil is the beneficial
owner of Szehope Securities Company Limited

and Resource Development Limited.

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NICHMEEREESER

ARz eMEERTREBEIN
FHEZIEEERERT -

SREE Financial assets
ERRERER Loans and receivables
BBER Mortgage loan
ESREMEWERT  Trade and other receivables
SEBH/RAFART Amount due from ultimate holding
company
RRERARK Amounts due from related companies
WEARRH Amounts due from subsidiaries
ROERRA S Bank balances and cash
BAREEIABE  Financial assets at fair value through
LEREE profit or loss
REEEN Listed equity securities
FhES held for trading
AEHESBEE  Available-for-sale financial assets
REZHMORE  Held-to-maturity investments
&% Debenture
tREE Financial liabilities
BALEEFABRE  Financial liabilities at fair value
LERAR through profit or loss
BEEEER Derivative financial instruments
A S held for trading or not
MESRIA qualifying as hedges
BE KR Financial liabilities measured at
cRAR amortised cost
EAREMER Trade and other payables
AR IR Amounts due to non-controlling
REER shareholders
FIRIBAGZE  Amounts due to subsidiaries
RERE Interest-bearing borrowings
BB Advances from a director

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 %R

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_F—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

32.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statements
of financial positions relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities:
LS 1] ARF

The Group The Company
“E2-%F “TENE “8-%f% “EENF
2010 2009 2010 2009
TER TAL TR TEL
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
108 126 - -
6,610 15,151 1 1
132 132 - -
1,200 900 - -
- - 1,979,714 1,804,606
101,251 35,922 128 153
97,544 152,167 - -
1,452 - - -
208,297 204,398 1,979,843 1,804,760
304 - - -
41,067 62,988 332 44
239,990 239,990 - =
- - 563,771 471,507
1,332,937 1,118,000 - -
43,854 71,477 43,854 71,477
1,658,152 1,492,455 607,957 543,408

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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32.2 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from the bank balances and cash
and trade and other receivables, primarily rents

receivable from tenants.

Bank balances and cash are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating
and the Group and the Company considers the

credit risk to be insignificant.

For rent receivables from tenants, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.
Rental deposits are required from tenants prior
to the commencement of leases. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group and the Company have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and tenants.
Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of each class
of financial assets. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.
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32.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

32.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
and the Company’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants by
reviewing each operating entity’s cash flow
forecast, to ensure that the Group and the Company
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities as at 30 June 2010 and 2009. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability is
settled, the liability is included on the basis of the
earliest date on when the Group and the Company
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is
allocated to the earliest period in which the Group
and the Company is committed to pay.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash
flows of the financial liabilities.
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32.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group
DPR—F —EEWEF MEZLEF
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
TAT TAT TAT
HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
At 30 June 2010
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 41,067 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 - -
Interest-bearing borrowings 188,871 66,352 1,135,195
Advances from a director 3,092 46,946 -
Derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 304 - -
473,324 113,298 1,135,195
At 30 June 2009
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 62,988 = =
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 = =
Interest-bearing borrowings 584,368 141,592 453,222
Advances from a director = 76,337 =
887,346 217,929 453,222
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32.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company

At 30 June 2010

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Advances from a director

At 30 June 2009

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Advances from a director

PR—F —EEMF MEZHEF
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 years and 5 years
TET THET TET
HK$"000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
332 - -
563,771 - -
3,092 46,836 -
567,195 46,836 -
424 - -
386,142 89,207 -
= 76,337 =
386,566 165,544 -
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32.4 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Except for mortgage loans and bank balances,
the Group and the Company has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest receivable from bank
balances, mortgage loans and interest-bearing
borrowings which includes bank loans, advances
from a director and a related company. These
arrangements issued at variable rates expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk. In accordance with the terms of the mortgage
loan and the interest-bearing borrowings, the
interest rate will be adjusted should the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate be changed. The Group and the Company
has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its

exposure to interest rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.
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32.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 30 June 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after
income tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$5,319,000 (2009: increase/decrease the
Group’s loss after income tax and decrease/increase
the Group’s retained profits by approximately
HK$5,786,000) and would increase/decrease the
Company’s profit after income tax and retained
profits by approximately HK$1,971,000 (2009:
decrease/increase the Company’s loss after
income tax and increase/decrease the Company’s
retained profits by HK$1,708,000). The 50 basis
point increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual

reporting date.

32.5 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group operates mainly
in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) or Renminbi
(“RMB”). Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
considers its foreign currency exposure is mainly
arising from the exposure of Renminbi. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments to

hedge the foreign exchange exposures.



BE_FT—FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

32.5 JMEE = B (£8) 32.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
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RITEARIR S Bank balances and cash
FENERFE Overall net exposure

EZZZEAFEA=TH At30 June 2009

RITEARIR S Bank balances and cash
FENERFE Overall net exposure
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The polices to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and

are considered to be effective.

The following table details of the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they

relate are shown below:

EnTr BT BN
USD’000 MOP’000 AUD’ 000
489 2 2,148

489 2 2,148

- 4 2,091

- 4 2,091

At 30 June 2010, if Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against Australian
dollars with all other variables held constant, profit
after income tax for the year would have been
HK$597,000 higher/lower (2009: loss after income
tax for the year would have been HK$656,000
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of Australian

dollars denominated bank balances.
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32.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk
with Australian dollars. However, management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risks
with United States dollars as the rate of exchange
between Hong Kong dollars and the United States
dollars is controlled within a tight range. Permanent
changes in foreign exchange rates would have an

impact on consolidated financial statements.

The foreign currency risk exposed to the Company

at the reporting date is immaterial.

32.6 Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities
in respect of its investments in listed equity
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss. The management will monitor the
price movements and take appropriate actions

when it is required.

The polices to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to be effective.
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32.6 M EE E b () 32.6 Other price risk (Continued)
HMERERZMENI0% (ZZEZEN A hypothetical 10% (2009: 10%) change in prices
F10%) EREHHEHAEBFBRF of trading investments would result in an effect to
ZRBNZEINT the Group’s result for the year as follows:

—E-Z2F Z—ZTTNF
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
KEEBE S Increase/(Decrease) in profit/(loss) for
KEZRF,(EHE) the year as a result of increase in
#Ean, ORd) price of investments held for trading 9,754 (15,217)
KEBIR TR (Decrease)/Increase in profit/(loss) for
KNERBF|,(EHE) the year as a result decrease in price
CRiA) /1 n of investments held for trading (9,754) 15,217

RIREERBRIEIZAFETE

AEBH —_FTTEAFLA—BFHS
BB BV BHREENF7R B
TEBEZRE] 2EF] - ZIERT
SIABRAFEAEREZ=ER
B YWHRAFEFENEYRISE
HEHREINEE - AEBENAE
B BRELENE7R ZEFT 2B
EIEMR - Bt EL AR AT {E
FERBIRBEILEBET -

32.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7
Improving disclosures about financial instruments
effective from 1 July 2009. These amendments
introduce a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures
about the relative reliability of fair value
measurements. The Group has taken advantage of
the transitional provisions in the amendments to
HKFRS 7 and accordingly, no comparatives for the
hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures

have been presented.
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32.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets and liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.
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32.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the statement of financial position are

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

£—E E=fE Bt
Level 1 Level 2 Total
ihEs FET FHET FET
Note HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BE Assets
HEEEEN Listed equity securities
TS held for trading (a) 97,544 - 97,544
&6 Liabilities
BHEEBEEHXTH  Derivative financial
aEH instruments held for
TRIT A trading or not
qualifying as hedge (b) = (304) (304)
N EEFE Net fair value 97,544 (304) 97,240
NBEHEITEE—E  F_EBN There have been no transfers between levels 1, 2

E=E G HEE -

EREREHRLER  EEARE
BEERBEMITERRMR AN

“=4

mam o

and 3 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation

techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.
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NINEERBRITERZAFEITE 32.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

(&) consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

(a) &% (a) Listed securities
EHESFAEBTRE  RLE The listed equity securities are denominated
ENEFE2ZRREAN L in Hong Kong dollars. Fair values have been
(B o determined by reference to their quoted bid

prices at the reporting date.

b) tTETA (b) Derivatives
AREEBEANTETLAAERE The derivatives entered into by the Group are
AERMIE FR 5 o WEER not traded on active markets. The fair values of
B A 7t BEAE T A 8 such contracts are estimated using a valuation
RZER B ARANERER - technique that maximises the use of observable
INEBRAE(EZE) o market inputs e.g. market currency and interest

rates (Level 2).

AEEERHEE S ABRAS BRI The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
FELCEFTABRREEMESTS Group will be able to continue as a going concern for
AT EFREESNE RSB shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
TR B AR AN o maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.
REFHARBELREE  ~XEEFHE In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
IRTFIRE 2B~ BTk EE = the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
LAV ARAE TS o shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.
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The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings and advances from
a director as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less bank balances and cash. Total
capital is equity as shown in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio

of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June

—tHZEEABBELENOT - 2010 and 2009 were as follows:
= —FF —EENF
2010 2009
FET FHE T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,332,937 1,118,000
BB Advances from a director 43,854 71,477
B Total borrowings 1,376,791 1,189,477
T ﬁETTﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁfﬁ Less: bank balances and cash (101,251) (35,922)
BEFE Net debt 1,275,540 1,153,555
488 7N Total capital 3,245,737 2,893,204

Gearing ratio

39.3% 39.9%
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BHE—_ZTZNFASA=1THIEFERN -
ETEREEHEMEMNERRNZER
X 727,470,000 E Xz 88 sk B2 4% & ¥ 2 ¥

(@) EAREAE
RERE BN R P Y E 2 E A
BRI EL AEFERER TP

During the year ended 30 June 2009, certain
development costs of HK$7,470,000 included under

other payables were written off and set-off against

investment properties.

(@) Capital commitments

Capital commitments in respect of properties under

development outstanding at the reporting date

A - not provided for in the financial statements are as
follows:
rEE
The Group
—2-%F  —TTAF
2010 2009
FET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
BHUEEREFL Authorised but not contracted for 180,888 170,485
EEXNEBREE Contracted but not provided for 652,337 557,239
833,225 727,724

ANNUAL RePoRT 2010 %R
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(b)

EEMHEE —REE

RIwER  AEERBEEVEEDS
BEBUB AT - RERWKEZ &K
He BUGRARRINT :

BE_FT—FTHXA=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

At the reporting date, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:

TEE
The Group

—E-ZF —ETNF

2010 2009

FER FAET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—F K Within one year 21,603 17,173
FE_EERFA In the second to fifth years

(BREEEME) inclusive 4,313 2,430

25,916 19,603

AEERBLSEHELHHARER
BEWE (MsE15) NP RE—=
=F REHERAEEREGRE
HEETH= R BAEREEE -
ZEHENGRR—BRTEXREE
xNREL - HEYEBFEXFHE

A
ik °

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
15) under operating lease arrangements which run
for an initial periods of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.
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(©)

EEMEE — REBEA

RIwER » ARERELHLET
ZTBERUBZHEHOT » RERZNZ
REBSMRETRDT

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessee

At the reporting date, the total future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

of land and buildings are as follows:

rEHE
The Group

—E-FF —EENF

2010 2009

FET TATT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—F K Within one year 4,560 3,000
FE_EERFA In the second to fifth years

(BEEEMF) inclusive 3,800 =

AEERBESEHEEAYE - K
R—EBARBEFRREEMR - HE
NERBEME - REIBBAHAEE
HAEREXTES M B &S
BHERBHEER - HEWERIE
HBEMEE -

8,360 3,000

The Group leases a property under operating leases
for providing living accommodation for a director
of the Company. The leases run for an initial period
of two years, with an option to renew the lease
and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at
dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords. None of the leases include

contingent rentals.



RZTZENF+—A AXRa2EW
BArEEEMERE CRY) BRA
AI([FEMMBAR] HEERRRME
EREF NEEHBESRTERTT -
WEKERIFHEERERBEEAR
#32,285,0007T (HH% 737,225,0007%
7T) °

KB —REAERFR RZT—ZFF
+tARB FEMBARESSER
YIMEREARER S 6 HE (T
R - REIMBARIAEI N FREK
K#916,935,0008 7T (FHER KLY AR
#14,688,0007T) °

FEMBAR RAEREZYE PR
RYNTT R RARERIERZ L5F - ZEE
ERBR  RNABEERERA - BRRBE
MEBMAR Bt - BREHR - K&
BEgE T TFEMBHREAG
IREEK AN %ER16,935,0008 7T - B
RETHEMN - B Al b EREEINE

BRI AYEALT °
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In November 2008, HEEHMERIZECXINER R
Al (“PRC Subsidiary”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, commenced legal proceedings against
a contractor for non-performance of construction
contracts and seeking declarations from the court
and compensation of RMB32,285,000 (equivalent to
HK$37,225,000).

After a series of legal proceedings, the PRC Subsidiary
received a judgement (“Judgement”) issued by
Shenzhen Baoan People’s Court, the PRC, on 5 July
2010. The PRC Subsidiary was liable to pay a net
construction costs of approximately HK$16,935,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB14,688,000).

Both the PRC Subsidiary and the contractor have
subsequently lodged an appeal to the Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court, PRC. Taken consideration
of the legal opinion, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty of the
outcome, hence based on the Judgement, a provision of
construction costs of HK$16,935,000 has been made in
the 2010 financial statements. In view of the uncertainty
it is not practicable to assess any additional potential

loss at this moment.



BB TETHBEA
1,917,576,000 7T (Z T T h F :
1,740,000,000/8 7T) IR1TEE - AR
AR MM B AR E RIRITIER A&
R-RZE—ZTFA=1+H U=
MED TERZERR1,332,937,000
BT (ZZEZENF - 1,118,000,000/%
TT) cRHER  EEZRABFERLA
EMBEREA T ZEEELESE
TR REH IR NMEEBERIBE R - IRIEBEEF
ARRITRERR  XRFENERBHA
20114F »

RBmER AARZHBBITHEE
1,332,937,0008 T (Z T N F :
1,118,000,000/8 7T) R 9T4 &/ T A
304,0008 T (ZEZTNF : THEIL) A
ATIEE (EE -

(@ BITEX

(i) AEENETREDE -
EEME WME HBER
whkEARBE AR
ZEMEEEFEERES A
2,556,997,0008 L (ZFF 1L
5 1 2,449,464,00078 7T) (A
i£15) %378,745,000% 7T (=
TZTNF ¢ 355,826,000/ 7T)
(K1 a£22) 80,000,000 JT
(ZZZ N : 78,000,000/
7T) (B7at16) $%68,864,000/8
TT(ZZETNGF : 0%87n) (Kt
23) B FIRIT -

M5

Bk

BE_FT—FHEA-A=1+HLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

The Company and two subsidiaries have executed
corporate guarantees to banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the extent
of HK$1,917,576,000 (2009: HK$1,740,000,000) of
which HK$1,332,937,000 was utilised as at 30 June
2010 (2009: HK$1,118,000,000). At the reporting date,
no provision for the Company’s obligation under the
guarantee contracts have been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the repayment
of the loans by the subsidiaries would be in default. The
fair value of these guarantees is immaterial. According
to the terms of the facilities utilised, the earliest

repayment date would be in year 2011.

At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$1,332,937,000 (2009: HK$1,118,000,000) and
derivative financial instruments of HK$304,000 (2009:
HK$Nil) were secured by the following:

(@) Bank borrowings

(i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s
investment properties, properties for
sales, property, plant and equipment
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with carrying values of
HK$2,556,997,000 (2009: HK$2,449,464,000)
(Note 15), HK$378,745,000 (2009:
HK$355,826,000) (Note 22), HK$80,000,000
(2009: HK$78,000,000) (Note 16) and
HK$68,864,000 (2009: HK$Nil) (Note 23)

respectively;



(a)

(b)

BITER(E)
(i) &THERARTAEENEE
ER BN IR

(iii) $R 17 45 17 BR ® 183,659,000/5

T (= iﬁghi-m,zﬂ,ooo
BIr) BEIEIR
(iv) ZFHEB AR ZKRHEEFT

17 (H1at20)  *

(v) ETHMEROOER - R
7 - e WA R E M i K
IR E o

fTESMI A

i) &@TAEENKRAARBEGT
ARz emEERKREE
7320,406,0008 T (ZZEZT 1
F 0BT (Bit23) BEER
R

() ZEFHETEREFEEDEA
144,000 T (ZZEEZEHE : 0
BIT) BEEHIR -
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(@) Bank borrowings (Continued)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

floating charge over all the assets and

undertakings of certain subsidiaries;

charge over certain bank account balances
with carrying values of HK$3,659,000 (2009:
HK$18,271,000);

mortgages over the shares of certain
subsidiaries (Note 20); and

assignments of sale proceeds, insurance
proceeds, rental income and deposits arising
from the tenancy agreements of certain

properties.

Derivative financial instruments

(i)

(ii)

legal charges on certain of the Group’s
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss with carrying values of HK$20,406,000
(2009: HK$Nil) (Note 23); and

charge over certain bank account balances
with carrying values of HK$144,000 (2009:
HK$Nil).



FEVR=R

Schedule of Major Properties

/ES

Property

BEMRABLIEGSE
SR ()
Scenic Crest

Mui Wo

Lantau Island

New Territories

Hong Kong (Portion)

BEBBHAYEES0R
s RAEE (7510)

South View Garden
80 Shek Pai Wan Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

(Portion)

BB BZ M E2005%
#5e ()

Villa Cecil

200 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 %R

&

Lot no.

4471630 R

716 in D D. 4

1 E7 184, 185,
186, 187, 188,
189, 190 % 19157
AlL. 184,185,
186, 187, 188,
189, 190 &191

it B 83385 BER
RIEEFHH

Sec. B of I.L.
8338 & Ext.

As at 30 June 2010

i REF

Crown
lease term
(F)

(years)

FEH1992F
FBET554F
55 from 1992

H11888%
#£:H9994%

999 from 1888

M1922F 5t
75EETSE
75 + 75 from
1922

BE/EE

Commercial/

Residential

mE/EE

Commercial/

Residential

S

FE

Residential

BEEER
Total gross

floor area
(EAR)
(s.f)

3,903

3,903

5,952

5,952

By
Car parking

spaces

18

Fir 4t 5
BOX

% owned

100

100

100

100

100

100

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA



ES

Property
BAREFE250%
SHRES

Cheuk Nang Plaza
250 Hennessary Road,
Hong Kong

BB TR RE303%
2aellE (31)
Cheuk Nang Lookout,
30 Severn Road,

The Peak,

Hong Kong (Portion)

BEHZHE1925%
HE_HE— —R=E
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3,
Villa Cecil, Phase I,

192 Victoria Road,

Hong Kong

&

Lot no.

WHLER27695 2 B T
13 N ER2769% 2
BT HBMDERID
R.P. of I.L. 2769

R.P. of S.D.

of I.L. 2769 R.P.

of S.5. 1 of S.D.

of I.L. 2769

MY

1 ER 10675
R.B.L. 1067

A ER2441

I.L. 2441

FEVR=R

Schedule of Major Properties

As at 30 June 2010

Frib s
iR E i) BEEHE By BA®
Crown Total gross  Car parking
lease term Type floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FHR)
(years) (s.f)
H1929F # 5T (GRS 56,174 25 100
99F 995
99 + 99 from Commercial 56,174 25 100
1929
A1992%F £ 6,500 8 100
RE55F
55 from 1992 Residential 6,500 8 100
M1922F 5t F=x 64,223 27 100
75EE75F
75 + 75 from Residential 64,223 27 100
1923

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA ANNUAL ReporT 2010 3R 189
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FEMER

Schedule of Major Properties

Property

BAREZME216%%
HIE=HE R
Tower 1, Villa Cecil,
Phase I,

216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong

Parkview @ittt & E35
BRAGDERIK T
BEK502508 R

Parkview@Cecil Chao Centre,

Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

ANNUAL RePORT 2010 %R

&

Lot no.

AR YR 2155

§ 3=

R.B.L. 215 & Ext from

PT773 Bk

Lot PT77

As at 30 June 2010

i REF

Crown

lease term
(F)

(years)
19226 i 5t
75 B755F

75 + 75 from
1922

KAFIE

Freehold

oYl

Type

=

fFE

Residential

Residential

BEEER
Total gross

floor area
(EAR)
(s.9)

20,494

20,494

27,236

27,236

By
Car parking

spaces

10

Fir 4t 5
O X

% owned

100

100

100

100

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£8) BRAA



FEVR=R

Schedule of Major Properties

R-E—FFXA=+H As at 30 June 2010
RZBENE
FigE  BHIE ABZtA
n% & BREH e R g HEAEE BER Efi  FSE  ZHAH BIfR
Stageof  Development
Crown Total gross  Car parking completion asat
Property Lot no. lease term Type* Sitearea floor area spaces % owned date 30/6/2009
(%) (FAR)  (¥AR)
(years) (s.f) (s.f)
—SNEMEERE ZEME H1991% frx 39,998 84,001 43 100 2012 F-BZARE
£RZTNELAS 83525 HEFT56%F EREL
FIMMBTE
TREAT
One Kowloon Peak Tsuen Wan 56 from Residential 39,998 84,001 43 100 2012 Occupation
8 Po Fung Terrace, Town Lot 352 1991 Permit for
Ting Kau, Phase | obtained.
Tsuen Wan Site formation work
for Phase Il
in progress
BkE5HE216% MREEN  A192FR frz 14,955 52,851 1 100 2010 LETE
HE=HE R WRUSE  TSEETE ERELTH
REESH
Tower II, Villa Cecil, RBL215 &Ext. 75+ 75 from Residential 14,955 52,851 1 100 2010 Superstructure
Phase Il 1922 work is in progress
216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong
HttEES £690, 691, KASE  BE/ME 88636 E-ZENH 879 100 AfAE  BEIEN
F_HEETH 849, 851 1,700,000 #nIR
EREDERET RP178%: 1263250
BRES02508E HRESTR
Phases Il to V, Section 57 Freehold Commercial/ 88,638  Phases 2 to 5 879 100 Not yet Part of the
Cecil Chao Centre Lots 690, Residential 1,700,000 determined  Foundation work
Lorong Perak 849, 851 is in progress
50250, and PT 78
Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& (£E) BRQA ANNUAL ReporT 2010 3R 191
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FEVR=R

Schedule of Major Properties

[
A

|
A

ES

Property

SRR
RYEEEER

Cheuk Nang Garden

Longhwa, Longgang,
Shenzhen

AR

Estrada de Seac
Pai Van

Lot no.

ik
AB19-0128

Lot No

A819-0128

2120255

Lot No 21202

i RN &SR
BRRMAR R E 184835
New Villa Cecil Lot No. 1848
Shui Hang D.D. Cheung Chau
Cheung Chau
Hong Kong
S o MM SER
MR S
ILEEA
Cheuk Nang ¢ Chong Xian Zhen
Riverside North of Chong Hang Jie

Yu Hang District  West of Yan Shan Gang

Hangzhou

ANNUAL RepoRT 2010 3R

BREH

Crown
lease term
(%)

(years)

20045
H£70E

70 from 2004

H20014%
#1108
10 from 2001

}2007%
Rit505F
50 from 2007

{E% : }2009%
12258
B0

A% : @009
12258
a5

Residential:
70 years from
25/12/2009
Commerical:
40 years from
25/12/2009

As at 30 June 2010

BE RS

Type*

B/

Commercial/
Residential

HE/fE

Commercial/
Residential

e

Residential

e/A%

Residential/
Commercial

BELER

Site area

(FAR)

(s.9)

552,449

552,449

97,934

97,934

10,362

10,382

419,623

419,623

AER

Total gross
floor area

(¥AR)

(s.9)

1,682,552

1,682,552

1,602,948

1,662,948

44,692

44,692

965,132

965,132

By

Car parking
spaces

1,054

1,054

BRRE

Not yet
determined

Nil

Nil

Not yet
determined

frika
An%

% owned

100

7242

72.4)

100

100

100

R IR
THAH
Stage of
completion
date

BfERE

Not yet
determined

BERRE

Not yet
determined

201

201

Not yet
determined

RoEENE
AB=TH
BIfER
Development
as at
30/6/2009

g fTarid
WEIR

g

The construction
work is pending
for the litigation

Fh2sE
Al

Pending Building
Plan approval

F-HLETR
33 2503
Superstructure
work of Phase |
is in progress

SREILE

Pending Building
Plan approval

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED & (£8) BRAA
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